
 
 

A G E N D A  •  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  

( T U E S D A Y )  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the 
City Council Chamber to participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk or General Services 
Director at (559) 324-2060 (TTY – 711).  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Council Chamber. 

 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at City Hall, in the City Clerk’s office, during 
normal business hours.  In addition, such writings and documents may be posted on the City’s 
website at www.cityofclovis.com. 

 
September 03, 2019 6:00 PM           Council Chamber 

  
The City Council welcomes participation at Council Meetings.  Members of the public may 
address the Council on any item of interest to the public that is scheduled on the Agenda.  In 
order for everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes 
per topic. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
FLAG SALUTE - Councilmember Flores 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 

1. Presentation Recognizing 7 year old Joseph Guerrero for the Incredible job he did on 
June 23rd when calling 911 for his mother.  
 

2. Presentation of Proclamation Honoring Soroptimist International of Clovis. 
 
Public Comments - This is an opportunity for the members of the public to address the City Council 
on any matter within the City Council’s jurisdiction that is not listed on the Agenda.  In order for 
everyone to be heard, please limit your comments to 5 minutes or less, or 10 minutes per 
topic.  Anyone wishing to be placed on the Agenda for a specific topic should contact the City 
Manager’s office and submit correspondence at least 10 days before the desired date of appearance. 

Council Chamber, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, CA 93612 (559) 324-2060 
www.cityofclovis.com 

1

http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/
http://www.ci.clovis.ca.us/


 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - With respect to the approval of resolutions and ordinances, 
the reading of the title shall be deemed a motion to waive a reading of the complete resolution 
or ordinance and unless there is a request by a Councilmember that the resolution or ordinance be 
read in full, further reading of the resolution or ordinance shall be deemed waived by unanimous 
consent of the Council. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR - Items considered routine in nature are to be placed upon the Consent 
Calendar.  They will all be considered and voted upon in one vote as one item unless a 
Councilmember requests individual consideration.  A Councilmember’s vote in favor of the Consent 
Calendar is considered and recorded as a separate affirmative vote in favor of each action 
listed.  Motions in favor of adoption of the Consent Calendar are deemed to include a motion to 
waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution on the Consent Calendar.  For adoption of 
ordinances, only those that have received a unanimous vote upon introduction are considered 
Consent items. 

3. City Clerk – Approval – Minutes from the August 5, 2019 Council Meeting. 

4. Community and Economic Development - Approval – FY 2019-20 Agreement between 
the City of Clovis and the Economic Development Corporation Serving Fresno County 

5. Community and Economic Development – Receive and File – Economic Development 
Corporation Serving Fresno County Quarterly Report, April – June 2019 

6. Finance - Approval – Res. 19-___, A Resolution of Intention (ROI) to Annex Territory 
(Annexation #58) (PM18-11-North East Corner of Locan and Powers.), to the 
Community Facilities District (CFD) 2004-1 and to Authorize the Levy of Special Taxes 
Therein and Setting the Public Hearing for October 7, 2019. 

7. General Services - Approval – Claim Rejection of General Liability claim on behalf of 
Bryon Espinosa. 

8. General Services - Approval – Claim Rejection of the General Liability Claim for Jose 
Gilberto Rivas.  

9. General Services - Approval – Res. 19-___, Amending the City’s Compensation Plan 
by Revising the Salary Range for the Planning and Development Administrative 
Manager Classification from $9,735-$11,834 to $8,335-$10,133. 

10. General Services – Approval – Res. 19-___, Approving Government Crime Policies for 
the Purpose of Bonding City Officers and Employees and Establishing Policy Limits 

11. Planning and Development Services Approval – Res. 19-___, Final Map Tract 6221, 
located at the northwest corner of Ashlan Avenue and Locan Avenue (Wilson Premier 
Homes, Inc.).   

12. Planning and Development Services – Approval – Res. 19-___, Annexation of 
Proposed Tract 6221, located at the northwest corner of Ashlan Avenue and Locan 
Avenue to the Landscape Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of Clovis. (Wilson 
Premier Homes, Inc.).   

2



13. Public Utilities – Approval – Waive formal bidding requirements and authorize entering 
into a contract with Golden Bell Products, Inc. for insect control in sanitary sewer 
manholes. 

14. Public Utilities – Approval – Waive formal bidding requirements and authorize the 
purchase of a Hybrid vehicle from Future Ford of Clovis; and Approval – Res. 19-___, 
Authorize the Submittal of a Grant Application under the SJVAPCD Public Benefit 
Grant Program and Authorize the City Manager to be the Contract Authority. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS - A public hearing is an open consideration within a regular or special meeting 
of the City Council, for which special notice has been given and may be required.  When a public 
hearing is continued, noticing of the adjourned item is required as per Government Code 54955.1. 

15. Consider Approval – Res. 19-___, A Request from the 500 Club located at 771 W. 
Shaw Avenue to Amend the License Fees for Gaming Clubs and Card Rooms in the 
City. 
 

Staff: John Holt, Assistant City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

16. Consider Approval - Res. 19-___, Resolution of Necessity to determine that public 
interest and necessity require acquisition of property for public purposes; and 
authorizing proceedings in eminent domain for two properties located at the northeast 
corner of Sunnyside Avenue and Fourth Street.  Addresses:  1403 Fourth Street; APN: 
491-191-18 and 1421 Fourth Street; APN: 491-191-17.  Owners: Flores Living Trust. 

Staff: Andrew Haussler, Community and Economic Director 
Recommendation: Approve  

 
CORRESPONDENCE- Correspondence is communication addressed to City Council that requests 
action. 
 

None. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS- Administrative Items are matters on the regular City Council Agenda 
other than Public Hearings. 

17. Consider Adoption – Ord. 19-11, R2019-004, A request to approve a rezone of a 
portion of the site from the R-A (Single-Family Residential – 24,000 Sq. Ft.) to the R-2 
(Low Density Multiple Family Residential) (1 Unit / 3,000 Sq. Ft.) Zone District. (Vote: 
4-0-1 with Mayor Bessinger absent) 

 

Staff: Ricky Caperton, Senior Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 

 

3



 
COUNCIL ITEMS 

18. Presentation on the Municode agenda management system and how agenda packets 
will be delivered to Council Members.  

Staff: Karey Cha, Administrative Analyst 
Recommendation: Update 

19. Consider Approval – Designation of Voting Delegate and Alternate for the League of 
California Cities’ Annual Conference and Annual Business Meeting, October 16-18, 
2019 

Staff: Luke Serpa, City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve  

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
CLOSED SESSION - A “closed door” (not public) City Council meeting, allowed by State law, for 
consideration of pending legal matters and certain matters related to personnel and real estate 
transactions. 
 

None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MEETINGS AND KEY ISSUES 

Regular City Council Meetings are held at 6: P.M. in the Council Chamber. The following are future 
meeting dates: 
  

Sep. 9, 2019 (Mon.) Joint Meeting with FMFCD 

Sep. 16, 2019 (Mon.)  

Oct. 7, 2019 (Mon.)  

Oct. 14, 2019 (Mon.) Joint Meeting with CUSD 

Oct. 21, 2019 (Mon.)  

  

4



AGENDA ITEM NO. 2

5



***PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL***                 Agenda Item 3 

 

August 5, 2019                                                          - 1 -                                                                      2:24 PM 

  CLOVIS  CITY  COUNCIL  MEETING 
 
August 5, 2019       6:00 P.M.         Council Chamber 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Pro Tem Flores 
Flag Salute led by Boy Scout Rafael Rios 
 
Roll Call: Present: Councilmembers Ashbeck, Flores, Mouanoutoua, and Whalen 

Absent: Mayor Bessinger 
 

PRESENTATION 
1. NONE. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS – 6:03 
 
Linda Richardson, resident, thanked staff for their support for the Freedom Fest 4th of July 
celebration held at Clovis High.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR - 6:05 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Whalen, that the items on the 
Consent Calendar be approved.  Motion carried 4-0-1 with Mayor Bessinger absent.  
 
2. City Clerk – Approved – Minutes from the July 15, 2019 Council Meeting. 
3. City Clerk – Approved – Waive Normal Purchasing Process and approve the purchase of 

replacement desktop computers and servers using competitively bid contracts with 
purchasing provisions for California State and local government agencies. 

4. Administration - Approved - City of Clovis Americans with Disabilities Act Transition Plan 
Update. 

5. Finance - Receive and Filed – Investment Report for the month of May 2019. 

6. Finance - Receive and Filed – Treasurer’s Report for the month of May 2019. 

7. General Services - Received and Filed 3rd Quarter FY 2018-19 General Services 
Department Report. 

8. General Services - Received and Filed 4th Quarter FY 2018-19 General Services 
Department Report. 

9. Planning and Development Services - Approved – Final Acceptance for CIP 14-21, 
Shaw/Locan Traffic Signal & Widening. 

10. Planning and Development Services - Approved - Bid Award for CIP 17-11, Ashlan Alley 
Project, and; Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract on behalf of the City. 

11. Planning and Development Services - Approved – Final Acceptance for CIP 17-19 Paula 
Avenue, Homsy Avenue, and San Gabriel Sewer Replacement. 

12. Planning and Development Services - Approved - Bid Award for CIP 18-09, 
Ashcroft/Holland Alley Project, and; Authorize the City Manager to execute the contract on 
behalf of the City. 

6



***PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL***                 Agenda Item 3 

 

August 5, 2019                                                          - 2 -                                                                      2:24 PM 

13. Planning and Development Services – Approved - Authorize the City Manager to Execute 
a Quit Claim Deed for Excess and Unnecessary Right of Way Along Gettysburg Avenue 
East of Highland Avenue. 

14. Planning and Development Services - Approved – Final Acceptance for Tract 6101, 
located on the southeast corner of Leonard Avenue and Dakota Avenue (DeYoung 
Properties). 

15. Public Safety - Approved – Res. 19-99, Confirming Weed and Rubbish Abatement 
Charges for 2019. 

16. Public Utilities – Approved - Recertification of the Sewer System Management Plan 
(SSMP) Five Year Update. 

17. Public Utilities - Approved - Waive Formal Bidding Requirements and Authorize the 
Purchase of a Landfill Compactor off of the Sourcewell Purchasing Contract from Quinn 
Company. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
18. 6:06 - ITEM A - APPROVED - RES. 19-100, ADOPTING AN ENVIRONMENTAL FINDING 

OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR REZONE R2019-004, 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT CUP2019-004, VESTING TENTATIVE TRACT MAP 
TM6262, VARIANCE V2019-001, AND RESIDENTIAL SITE PLAN REVIEW RSPR2019-
003, AND ITEM B - APPROVED INTRODUCTION - ORD. 19-11, R2019-004, 
APPROVING A REZONE OF A PORTION OF THE SITE FROM THE R-A (SINGLE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL – 24,000 SQ. FT.) TO THE R-2 (LOW DENSITY MULTIPLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) (1 UNIT / 3,000 SQ. FT.) ZONE DISTRICT; AND ITEM C -
APPROVED - RES. 19-101, CUP2019-004, APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
FOR A 185-LOT PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT WITH PRIVATE STREETS; 
AND ITEM D - APPROVED - RES. 19-102, TM6262, APPROVING A VESTING 
TENTATIVE TRACT MAP FOR A 185-LOT PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, 
AND ITEM E - APPROVED - RES. 19-103, V2019-001, APPROVING A VARIANCE TO 
REDUCE THE MINIMUM DRIVE AISLE WIDTH FROM 26 FEET TO 20 FEET FOR 
PORTIONS OF THE PRIVATE ROADWAY NETWORK TO ACCOMMODATE A 185-UNIT 
TOWNHOME PROJECT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT ASSESSOR PARCEL 
NUMBERS (APNS) 561-260-10 AND 561-260-17. 
 

Associate Planner Rickie Caperton presented a report on various items associated with 
approximately 12.50 acres of property located at the northwest corner of Spruce and 
Peach Avenues.  The applicant is proposing a 185-unit gated townhome complex at the 
Project site shown in Figure 1 of the staff report. In order to accommodate the Project, the 
applicant is requesting to rezone a portion of an approximately 12.50-acre Project site, 
shown in Figure 2 below, from the R-A (Single-Family Residential-24,000 Sq. Ft.) to the 
R-2 (Low Density Multiple Family Residential) (1 Unit / 3,000 Sq. Ft.) Zone District.  The 
Project also includes approval of a vesting tentative tract map for a gated 185-lot planned 
residential townhome development with private streets and a Homeowner’s Association. 
Additionally, the applicant is requesting approval of a variance to reduce the minimum 
drive aisle width from 26 feet to 20 feet for portions of the private roadway network. 
Approval of this Project would allow the applicant to continue processing development 
drawings and to complete the Residential Site Plan Review process. 

7



***PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL***                 Agenda Item 3 

 

August 5, 2019                                                          - 3 -                                                                      2:24 PM 

Dirk Poeschel, representing the applicant, addressed questions and spoke in support of 
the project. Robert Panell, area resident, north of the project, raised concerns about the 
northern boundary of the project. Linda Richardson, resident, asked questions of staff 
regarding parking and garage size. Bill Robinson, representing the current property owner, 
the Donaghy’s, raised concerns regarding the intersection of Helm and Spruce. Bill 
Robinson indicated that the property of the south would have an impact of approximately 
$500,000. Marilyn Bardell, resident, questioned measurements between units. Sherry 
Gear, area resident, questioned the height of the fence on the north side of the project. 
Discussion by the Council. 

 

Motion by Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, for the 
Council to approve Item A, Resolution 19-100, adopting an environmental finding of a 
mitigated negative declaration for Rezone R2019-004, conditional use permit CUP 2019-
004, vesting tentative tract map TM6262, variance V2019-001, and residential site plan 
review RSPR 2019-003.  Motion carried 3-1-1 with Councilmember Ashbeck voting 
no and Mayor Bessinger absent.  

 

Motion by Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, for the 
Council to approve Item B, the introduction of Ordinance 19-11, R2019-004, approving a 
rezone of a portion of the site from the R-A (single-family residential – 24,000 sq. ft.) to the 
R-2 (low density multiple family residential) (1 unit / 3,000 sq. ft.) zone district. Motion 
carried 4-0-1 with Mayor Bessinger absent. 

 

Motion by Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, for the 
Council to approve Item C, Resolution 19-101, CUP2019-004, approving a conditional 
use permit for a 185-lot planned residential development with private streets. Motion 
carried 3-1-1 with Councilmember Ashbeck voting no and Mayor Bessinger absent.  

Motion by Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, for the 
Council to approve Item D, Resolution 19-102, TM6262, approving a vesting tentative 
tract map for a 185-lot planned residential development. Motion carried 3-1-1 with 
Councilmember Ashbeck voting no and Mayor Bessinger absent.  

 

Motion by Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, for the 
Council to approve item E, Resolution 19-103, V2019-001, approving a variance to 
reduce the minimum drive aisle width from 26 feet to 20 feet for portions of the private 
roadway network to accommodate a 185-unit townhome project for property located at 
assessor parcel numbers (APNs) 561-260-10 and 561-260-17. Motion carried 3-1-1 with 
Councilmember Ashbeck voting no and Mayor Bessinger absent. 

 

19. 7:40 - CONTINUED - RES. 19-XX, RESOLUTION OF NECESSITY TO DETERMINE 
THAT PUBLIC INTEREST AND NECESSITY REQUIRE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY 
FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES AND; AUTHORIZING PROCEEDINGS IN EMINENT DOMAIN 
FOR TWO PROPERTIES LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SUNNYSIDE 
AVENUE AND FOURTH STREET.  ADDRESSES:  1403 FOURTH STREET; APN: 491-
191-18 AND 1421 FOURTH STREET; APN: 491-191-17.  OWNERS: FLORES LIVING 
TRUST.   

 
8



***PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL***                 Agenda Item 3 

 

August 5, 2019                                                          - 4 -                                                                      2:24 PM 

Mayor Pro Tem Flores indicated that he has a conflict of interest with this item and that he 
would recuse himself and left the dais at 7:40 

Councilmember Ashbeck indicated that staff was recommending that this item be 
continued to a date certain due to it requiring a 4/5th vote for approval.  Councilmember 
Ashbeck indicated that this item will be continued to September 3, 2019. There being no 
public comment, Councilmember Ashbeck closed the public portion. Discussion by the 
Council.  Motion by Councilmember Whalen, seconded by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, 
for the Council to continue this item to the September 3, 2019 Council meeting. Motion 
carried 3-0-1-1 with Mayor Bessinger absent and Mayor Pro Tem Flores abstaining. 

Councilmember Flores returned to the dais at 7:42.  

 

CORRESPONDENCE 
 

20. NONE. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 

21. 7:42 - APPROVED – LAND TENURE AGREEMENT WITH FRESNO WILDLIFE 
REHABILITATION SERVICE TO CONSTRUCT THE NATURE CENTER AT DAVID 
MCDONALD PARK AND AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
AGREEMENT  

City Manager Luke Serpa presented a report on a request to approve a land tenure 
agreement with Fresno Wildlife Rehabilitation Service to construct The Nature Center at 
David McDonald Park and authorize city manager to execute the agreement. Council 
identified the park now known as David McDonald Park as a location for a Nature Center 
in 2007 in cooperation with the non-profit organization Fresno Wildlife Rehabilitation 
Services (FWRS).  FWRS has acquired funding for construction of the first phase of the 
project, which will be identified as The Nature Center.  FWRS has submitted a request for 
land at the park to construct the facility and has complied with all of the City’s requirements 
for this type of partnership with the City.  Staff is recommending that Council approve the 
attached Land Tenure Agreement to provide the land for FWRS to build The Nature Center 
at David McDonald Park.     
 
Kathy Garner, FWRS founder and president, spoke in support and addressed questions of 
Council. Discussion by the Council.  Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by 
Councilmember Mouanoutoua, for the Council to approve a land tenure agreement with 
Fresno Wildlife Rehabilitation Service to construct The Nature Center at David McDonald 
Park and authorize city manager to execute the agreement. Motion carried 4-0-1 with 
Mayor Bessinger absent. 

 
22. 8:05 - APPROVED – RES. 19-104, APPROVING THE EXCEPTION TO THE 180-DAY 

WAIT PERIOD (GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 7522.56 & 21224) PERTAINING TO 
THE HIRING OF BRYAN ARAKI AS EXTRA HELP FOR CRITICAL CITY PLANNING 
PROJECTS 

Personnel / Risk Manager Lori Shively presented a report on a request to approve the 
exception to the 180-day wait period (Government Code Sections 7522.56 & 21224) 
pertaining to the hiring of Bryan Araki as extra help for critical city planning projects. The 

9



***PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO APPROVAL***                 Agenda Item 3 

 

August 5, 2019                                                          - 5 -                                                                      2:24 PM 

Planning and Development Services Department requests authority to utilize the exception 
provided in Government Code section 21224 to hire a retired CalPERS employee for a 
limited duration, not to exceed six months, to provide oversight and specialized training 
regarding the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) program compliance and train 
staff in regards to continuing essential City projects and to complete the SB2 housing grant.  
There being no public comment, Mayor Pro Tem Flores closed the public portion.  
Discussion by the Council.  Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by 
Councilmember Whalen, for the Council approve the exception to the 180-day wait period 
(Government Code Sections 7522.56 & 21224) pertaining to the hiring of Bryan Araki as 
extra help for critical city planning projects. Motion carried 4-0-1 with Mayor Bessinger 
absent. 
 

CITY MANAGER COMMENTS – 8:07 
 

City Manager Luke Serpa commented on the Citizen’s Academy and direction going 
forward for the September Academy.  
 

COUNCIL ITEMS 8:08 
 

23. Council Comments 

Councilmember Whalen commented on the Extreme Makeover Home Edition Clovis 
filming and what positive comments he received about city support, he also commented on 
Matt Basgall’s retirement and how well it was done. 
 
Councilmember Ashbeck also commented on Matt Basgall’s retirement.  She also 
commented on the mass shootings over the weekend in Gilroy, El Paso, and Dayton.  She 
called out the Fire Department cooking dinner at Woods Mobile Home Park during the 
power outage and what a great job they did.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Flores also commented on the mass shootings in Gilroy, Dayton, and El 
Paso and acknowledged that first responders get their due respect.  
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
24. None. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Flores adjourned the meeting of the Council to September 3, 2019  
 

Meeting adjourned:   8:14 p.m. 
 
 

______________________________  ________________________________ 
Mayor Pro Tem     City Clerk 

10



 

2019-20 EDC Agreement 8/27/2019 7:25:59 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Community and Economic Development 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Community and Economic Development - Approval – FY 2019-20 
Agreement between the City of Clovis and the Economic 
Development Corporation Serving Fresno County 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Agreement  
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Approve and authorize the City Manager to execute the fiscal year 2019-20 Agreement 
between the City of Clovis and the Economic Development Corporation Serving Fresno 
County (EDC) up to an amount of $50,000. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The attached agreement is between the City of Clovis and the Economic Development 
Corporation serving Fresno County up to an amount of $50,000.  The agreement outlines 
activities and responsibilities that the EDC will provide for the funding. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Agreement continues the formalized relationship between the City and the EDC.  
Performance standards were adjusted in the previous contract which included pay-for-
performance incentives.  These changes have been continued in the proposed contract as 
they have shown to be successful.  The deliverables target the EDC efforts on attraction with 
some support work for business retention as well as in-depth research on a medical cluster 
analysis to identify businesses to target for recruitment. 
 
Attraction efforts will include data analysis to determine likely industries and subsequent 
businesses that are ideal for Clovis to focus on, general marketing efforts, trade show 
attendance, outreach to brokers, and an incentive for site tours completed for businesses 
looking to locate in Clovis.  Retention efforts will include utilizing access to economic data 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        4 

          City Manager: LS 

  

11



City Council Report 
2019-20 EDC Agreement 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

2019-20 EDC Agreement 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 2 of 2 

the EDC has to ensure that Clovis staff is focusing on critical businesses in retention efforts 
and the EDC acting as a business resource expert.  This structure allows for the City and the 
EDC to leverage their expertise and increase the ability of economic development efforts in 
Clovis. 
 
To facilitate continued close coordination between the City and EDC, the Community and 
Economic Development Director sits on the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee 
of the EDC.  The City’s Community and Economic Development staff maintains a close 
working relationship with the EDC’s Executive Director and staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The City of Clovis will pay the EDC up to $50,000, including performance incentives, in the 
2019-20 fiscal year in four quarterly payments contingent on submission of a quarterly report 
of activities to the City Council.  These funds are included in the 2019-20 City budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
This agreement is consistent with the adopted budget, policies, goals, and objectives of the 
City Council.  As a regional economic development organization, it is appropriate that the 
City collaborates with the EDC on the implementation of goals and objectives to facilitate the 
creation of jobs for Clovis and the region.   
 
Approval of this agreement will allow the City to continue its coordinated approach to 
enhancing the City’s economy and job creation efforts with the County of Fresno and other 
cities within the County. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
After approval, the City Manager will execute the agreement; the Community and Economic 
Development staff will administer the agreement. 
 
Prepared by: Andrew Haussler, Community and Economic Development Director 
 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
 

12



 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CLOVIS AND THE  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION SERVING FRESNO COUNTY 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Clovis (City) is committed to a balanced 

and diversified economy as one of its most important priorities to ensure the future well-
being of the citizens of Clovis; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has invested considerable resources to encourage a Clovis 
location for new and expanding businesses and industries and to ensure the economic 
vitality of commercial areas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Economic Development Corporation Serving Fresno County 
(EDC) continues to maintain regional, national, and international marketing and 
promotional efforts to attract the location and expansion of businesses and industries in 
all of the communities within Fresno County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the State of California (State) has designated the EDC as its regional 
contact and referral point for businesses and industries that contact the State while 
seeking a location for new or expanded facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to secure such services, and allocates funds to the 
EDC for purposes of aligning additional EDC resources and staff support to assist in 
implementing and administering certain local economic development activities such as 
advocacy, marketing and promotion, and technical support for the City of Clovis by the 
EDC toward business attraction goals to create ongoing opportunities for the City; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to enhance its support of the EDC in order to utilize 

the unique position the EDC maintains within the business community, and to promote 
economic growth in the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the EDC agree as follows: 
 

1. The EDC agrees to assist the City in promoting the economic growth in the 
City by providing the following services to the City: 
 
(a) Provide information to industrial and office representatives not 

currently located in Clovis for the purpose of recruiting new 
businesses and industries to Clovis. 

 
(b) Assist in the development of marketing materials to attract new 

investment to Clovis.  
 

(c) Provide the opportunity for a presentative of Clovis to attend one 
tradeshow of choice with the EDC.  Registration fee will be covered 
by EDC.  

13



 

 
(d) Assist existing Clovis businesses and industries that contact the 

EDC with informational and technical assistance needs through the 
Economic Development Team. 

 
(e) Assist in marketing the City of Clovis Research and Technology 

Park. 
 
(f) Market the City of Clovis to commercial and industrial brokers, 

developers, site selectors, and businesses. 
 
(e) Serve as a distribution point for City of Clovis economic 

development materials. 
 
(f) Assist the City in the implementation of the City’s Economic 

Development Strategy and the Business Retention, Expansion and 
Attraction Program. 

 
(g) The Economic Development team will work towards fostering a 

closer working relationship with local business associations to 
enhance the accessibility of EDC’s services to City of Clovis 
employers. Level of partnership is dependent on willingness and 
capacity of local business associations to participate. 

 
(h)  Provide City of Clovis points-of-contact with login information and 

training on EDC’s Fresno County Cities self-management portal 
which offers the ability to keep up to date information on parcel 
availability and an economic profile.  

 
(i) Continue its leadership role in the promotion of High Speed Rail in 

Fresno County and the State and promote the City of Clovis for 
business opportunities and housing. 

 
(j) Assist City of Clovis points-of-contact in fully utilizing social media 

and online marketing tools to advance economic and community 
development efforts in the City of Clovis. 

 
(k) The EDC will inform the City of Clovis of legislation important to the 

Economic and Community Development of the region and advocate 
on their behalf. 

 
(l) In addition to periodic reports to the Economic Development 

Director and City Manager, submit quarterly status reports to the 
City Council, detailing the progress of the EDC and related activities. 

 
(m) The EDC shall assist in identifying economic development projects 

on the City’s behalf for inclusion in the County of Fresno’s 

14



 

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) for 
possible grant funding. 

(n) The EDC agrees to provide a designated Economic Development 
Specialist as an EDC staff member to respond to City business 
attraction and expansion leads and to ensure City participation.  

 
2. For performance of the services described in Section 1, paragraphs (a) 

through (p) and for measurable outcomes identified in Exhibit A, the City 

agrees to pay the EDC the sum of $40,000 to be paid in four (4) quarterly 

installments, at the end of each quarter, with the quarter commencing 

July 1, 2019.  In addition to the services described in Section 1, the City 

agrees to pay the EDC ten thousand dollars ($10,000) in one installment 

upon completion of the Comparative Healthcare Analysis.  

 
3. It is understood and agreed that in the performance of this agreement the 

EDC is an independent contractor.  The EDC shall take out and maintain 
Workers Compensation, State Disability, and other insurance coverage as 
required by law and shall in all other respects comply with applicable 
provisions of federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations. 

 
4. The EDC shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its officers, 

agents, and employees, from all claims for money, damages, or other relief 
arising in any form from the performance of this agreement by the EDC, its 
officers, agents, or employees.  The EDC shall take out and maintain for 
the full term of this agreement liability insurance providing protection for 
personal injury, wrongful death, and property damage; such insurance to 
be in amounts and issued by carriers acceptable to the City.  The EDC 
shall provide the City with a Certificate of Insurance evidencing such 
coverage. 

 
5. The funds provided EDC by the City pursuant to this agreement shall not 

be directly or indirectly used for any political purpose whatsoever.  This 
prohibition includes, but is not limited to, campaigns, events, promotions, 
literature, lobbying or other activities for, against or on behalf of any state, 
local or federal legislation, issue, candidate(s) or action, whether partisan 
in nature or not. 

 
6. As part of the annual financial audit of the books and records of the EDC 

by the EDC’s independent auditor, the audit shall include tests for 
compliance with this Agreement.  These tests shall be performed in 
conformance with generally accepted auditing standards.  The auditor shall 
prepare a separate written report on the compliance with the provisions of 
this agreement.  The City reserves the right to review, during normal 
business hours, the books and records of the EDC’s expenditures which 
are related to the programs required by the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
 

15



 

 
DATED: ________________________  DATED: _________________________ 
 
 

CITY OF CLOVIS  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION SERVING FRESNO 
COUNTY 

 
BY: ____________________________  BY:____________________________ 

Luke Serpa, City Manager                           Lee Ann Eager, CEO 
    

 
 
ATTEST 
 
          __________________________ 

John Holt, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
          __________________________ 
 City Attorney  
 
 
 
  

16



  
 

 

FY 19-20 Overview of 
Work Product 

Deliverables 
FY 2019 – 2020 Target 

Outcomes  

Economic Development 
Corporation Serving 
Fresno County  
 
Contract: $40,000 
 
Performance Base: 
$10,000 
($2,500 per site tour) 
 
Staff: 
President & CEO 
Lee Ann Eager 
 
Director of Business 
Services  
Will Oliver 
 
Business Support 
Manager 
Clay Gilpin 

Retention:  
Targeted businesses will be contacted by a 
variety of methods to educate Clovis businesses 
on local, regional and statewide incentive 
programs  

 Conduct Analysis to determine top 50 companies 
in Clovis that should be focused on for retention 
and expansion 
 

New Business Recruitment:  
Provide information and tours to industrial and 
commercial representatives not currently located in Clovis 
for the purpose of recruiting new businesses and industries 
to the City of Clovis.  Assist the City of Clovis in marketing 
identified industrial parks or industrial areas to new clients.  

 

 Coordinate site tours for the purpose of business 
attraction and expansion. 
 

 Create and update marketing materials. 
 

 Coordinate commercial and industrial broker 
events for the City of Clovis. 
 

 Conduct analysis to determine expansion 
industries and companies to target for expansion. 
 

 Attend trade shows/missions and market Clovis. 

 
Top 50 targeted business 
analysis for 
expansion/retention 
 

Respond to all City of Clovis 
business inquires and 
connect them to 
appropriate resources 

 

2 Broker Events 

 
40 new business leads 
 

5 Trade shows/missions 
attended 

 
Incentive brochure created 
and distributed to targeted 
Clovis businesses in 
cooperation with City staff 
 
Economic Profile including 
updated demographic 
information 
 
Business Park Brochures 
 
Incentive Brochure 

 

 

17



 

EDCQtr4Rpt 8/27/2019 7:35:24 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Community and Economic Development 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Community and Economic Development – Receive and File – 
Economic Development Corporation Serving Fresno County 
Quarterly Report, April – June 2019 

ATTACHMENTS: 1.  EDC Fourth Quarter Report, April – June 2019 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the City of Clovis receive and file the Quarterly Report April – June 2019 (Fourth quarter 
2018-19 contract), from the Economic Development Corporation Serving Fresno County. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Economic Development Corporation serving Fresno County (EDC) has submitted their 
fourth quarter report of activities for the City Council to receive and file, as required per the 
2018 -19 Agreement with the City. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In summer of 2018, the City of Clovis and the EDC entered into a contract for the 2018-19 
fiscal year to provide regional marketing and businesses services to Clovis Businesses.  The 
contract provides for $40,000 in baseline funding and incentivizes the EDC with payment for 
site tours conducted in Clovis for a business looking to relocate into the region.  This allows 
Clovis to be part of a regional effort in attracting commercial and industrial businesses to 
Clovis. Attached is a report detailing the progress of their activities to provide information to 
industrial/commercial representatives not currently located in Clovis for recruiting purposes, 
and continue to assist existing Clovis businesses with informational and/or technical 
assistance to access statewide business support programs.    
 
 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        5 

          City Manager: LS 

  

18



City Council Report 
EDCQtr4Rpt 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

EDCQtr4Rpt 8/27/2019 7:35:24 PM Page 2 of 2 

Highlights of the EDC quarterly report include: 
 

• Three qualified business attraction leads were achieved during the quarter. 
• The EDC attended 3 trade shows. 
• The EDC conducted 1 site tour 
• Summary of 2018-19 results are below:  
 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The City will forward the fourth quarter installment payment to EDC.  The funds were 
budgeted in the 2018-19 fiscal year budget. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The attached report meets the requirement established in the 2018-19 Agreement between 
the EDC and the City of Clovis. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will file the report. 
 
Prepared by: Andy Haussler, Community and Economic Development Director 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 

19



ATTACHMENT 1
20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



 

CFD Annex #58 ROI 8/27/2019 7:37:07 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Finance Department 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Finance - Approval – Res. 19-___, A Resolution of Intention (ROI) to 
Annex Territory (Annexation #58) (PM18-11-North East Corner of 
Locan and Powers.), to the Community Facilities District (CFD) 2004-
1 and to Authorize the Levy of Special Taxes Therein and Setting the 
Public Hearing for October 7, 2019. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___, Intention to Annex Territory to CFD 
2. Annexation Map 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Council approve Res. 19-___, A Resolution of Intention to Annex Territory 
(Annexation #58) to Community Facilities District (CFD) 2004-1 and to Authorize the Levy of 
Special Taxes therein and setting the Public Hearing for October 7, 2019. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Since the condition to establish a CFD was imposed on the developments being processed 
by the City, developments proceeding after March 8, 2004, must petition to be annexed to 
the existing CFD.  This action is required to begin the process of annexation provided by the 
conditions of approval of the development entitlements. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Since the condition to establish a CFD was imposed on the developments being processed 
by the City, developments proceeding after March 8, 2004, must petition to be annexed to 
the existing CFD.  Recently, a developer has submitted a petition to annex territory to the 
Community Facilities District 2004-1 and to include his subdivision within the District as 
provided by the conditions of approval of the development entitlements. 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:         6 

          City Manager: LS 

  

28



City Council Report 
CFD Annex #58 ROI 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

CFD Annex #58 ROI 8/27/2019 7:37:07 PM Page 2 of 2 

To initiate the process for annexation of territory to a CFD, the Council must approve a 
Resolution of Intention (ROI) to annex territory to the CFD.  The ROI included with this report 
includes various actions necessary for the annexation to the CFD.  The Rate and Method of 
Apportionment (RMA) referred to in the ROI is as adopted by the Council with the Resolution 
of Formation adopted March 8, 2004.   

 
The area to be annexed, PM18-11 North East Corner of Locan and Powers, is shown in the 
attached map. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact by this action. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
All requirements to begin the process for annexation of territory to the CFD have been 
completed, and the Council may take action on the ROI.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The Staff will take appropriate steps to schedule the Public Hearing on the Annexation of 
Territory to the CFD for October 7, 2019, and will provide the notices in accordance with the 
law.   
 
Prepared by: Steve Nourian, Senior Accounting Systems Technician 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
  
 

29



 

 

RESOLUTION 19-___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING THE INTENTION TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES  

DISTRICT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 
 
 

CITY OF CLOVIS 
Community Facilities District No. 2004-1 

(Police and Fire Services) 
Annexation No. 58 

 
 

WHEREAS, this Council has conducted proceedings to establish Community Facilities 

District No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services) (the “CFD”) pursuant to the Mello-Roos 

Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (the "Act"), Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 

of Title 5, commencing at Section 53311, of the California Government Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, under the Act, this Council, as the legislative body for the CFD, is empowered 

with the authority to annex territory to the CFD, and now desires to undertake proceedings to 

annex territory to the CFD. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis: 

 

1. Findings. This Council hereby finds and determines that public convenience and 
necessity require that territory be added to the CFD. 
 
2.  Territory Described. The name of the existing CFD is “Community Facilities District 
No. 2004-1 (Police and Fire Services)”. The territory included in the existing CFD is as shown 
on the map thereof filed in Book 40 of Maps of Assessment and Community Facilities Districts 
at Page 57, in the office of the County Recorder, County of Fresno, State of California, to which 
map reference is hereby made.  The territory now proposed to be annexed to the CFD is as 
shown on the Annexation Map No. 58 to the CFD, on file with the Clerk, the boundaries of 
which territory are hereby preliminarily approved and to which map reference is hereby made 
for further particulars.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause to be recorded said 
Annexation Map No. 58 to the CFD, showing the territory to be annexed, in the office of the 
County Recorder of the County of Fresno within fifteen days of the date of adoption of this 
resolution. 
 
3.  The Services.  The types of public services financed by the CFD and pursuant to the 
Act consist of those of the police and fire services (the “Services”) as described in Exhibit A to 
Resolution No. 04-33, adopted by the Council on March 8, 2004 (the “Resolution of 
Formation”).  It is presently intended that the Facilities (and the Services) will be shared, 
without preference or priority, by the existing territory in the CFD and the territory proposed to 
be annexed to the CFD. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 30



 

 

4.  Special Tax.   Except to the extent that funds are otherwise available to the CFD to pay 
for the Services, a special tax sufficient to pay the costs thereof is intended to be levied 
annually within the CFD, and collected in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property 
taxes.  The proposed rate and method of apportionment of the special tax among the parcels 
of real property within the CFD, as now in existence and following the annexation proposed 
herein, in sufficient detail to allow each landowner within the territory proposed to be annexed 
to the CFD to estimate the maximum amount such owner will have to pay, are described in 
Exhibit B attached to the Resolution of Formation, by which this reference is incorporated 
herein. 
 
5.  Hearing.  Monday, October 7, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. or as soon as possible thereafter, in 
the City Hall, Council Chambers, 1033 Fifth Street, Clovis, California, be, and the same are 
hereby appointed and fixed as the time and place when and where this Council, as legislative 
body for the CFD, will conduct a public hearing on the annexation of territory to the CFD and 
consider and finally determine whether the public interest, convenience and necessity require 
said annexation of territory to the CFD and the levy of such special tax therein. 
 
6. Notice.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of said public hearing to be 
given by publication one time in a newspaper of general circulation in the area of the CFD.  
The publication of said notice shall be completed at least seven (7) days before the date herein 
set for said hearing.  The City Clerk shall also cause a copy of such notice and a copy of the 
Resolution of Formation to be mailed to each landowner (and to each registered voter, if any) 
within the territory proposed to be annexed, which notice and resolution shall be mailed at least 
fifteen (15) days before the date of said hearing.  Such notice shall be substantially in the form 
specified in Section 53339.4 of the Act, with a summary form specifically authorized. 
 
7. Annexation Contingency. Section 53316 of the Act shall apply to the proceedings of 
the Council for the CFD to the extent that the proceedings, if appropriate, include territory which 
on the date of adoption of this Resolution of Intention are not annexed to the City and which 
territory is proposed to be annexed to the City.  This Council determines that the City has filed 
appropriate documents, including a “resolution of application”, with the Fresno County Local 
Agency Formation Commission (“LAFCO”) for the annexation of territory as therein described, 
which territory includes all or a portion of the lands proposed for inclusion in the boundaries of 
the CFD as herein described.  A certificate of filing of such application has been issued by the 
official who is the executive officer of LAFCO, a copy of which certificate of filing is on file with 
the City Clerk.  It is hereby specifically provided that these proceedings for the CFD, to the 
extent applicable to such territory subject to such LAFCO annexation to the City, shall be 
contingent upon and shall be completed only if the annexation of such territory to the City by 
LAFCO is completed.  It is further provided that this Council shall not authorize the levy of the 
Special Tax nor cause any amended notice of special tax lien to be recorded for the territory 
to be annexed to the CFD unless and until such annexation proceedings through LAFCO are 
completed to the satisfaction of this Council. 
 
8. Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 

 

 

*  *  *  *    * 

 

31



 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on September 3, 2019 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED: September 3, 2019 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

 Mayor       City Clerk 
 

 

32



�--L____-------1.._-----L����-------------.JJ =�:::::2_.�-
EAST SHEPHERD AVE. 

I I I / t-'---'j
--------1

�---.----r--,---r--r-....,.......,.� �� 1---

t--t--+-+-+---+--+--+-+---1 1------t-,,,()-__, /----------I�----'------'--- = � I \
I 

� I 11 m 

LEGEND 

® 

N 

s 

PARCEL 

ANNEXATION BOUNDARY 

APN 558-510-06

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK THIS --�DAY 
OF -----� OCTOBER 2019. I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE
WITHIN MAP SHOWING PROPOSED BOUNDARIES OF 
ANNEXATION NO. 58 TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 

2004-1 (POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES), CITY OF CLOVIS, 

COUNTY OF FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, WAS APPROVED 
BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS AT A 
REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, HELD ON THE 7TH_ DAY OF 
___ OCTOBE�---• 2019, BY ITS RESOLUTION NO. 19-___ . 

JOHN HOLT 
CITY CLERK 
Cl TY OF CLOVIS 

FILED THIS ____ DAY OF ------� 2019, 

AT THE HOUR OF ____ O'CLOCK_.M. IN THE 

BOOK _____ PAGE ____ OF MAPS OF 
ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS AND AS 
INSTRUMENT NO. IN THE 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER IN THE COUNTY OF 
FRESNO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA. 

PAUL A. DICTOS, C.P.A. BY: DEPUTY COUNTY RECORDER 
COUNTY ASSESSOR-RECORDER 
COUNTY OF FRESNO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

REFERENCE IS MADE TO THAT BOUNDARY MAP OF 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO 2004-1 (POLICE AND 

FIRE SERVICES) OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS RECORDED WITH THE 

FRESNO COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE ON FEBRUARY 19, 

2004, IN BOOK 40 OF MAPS OF ASSESSMENT AND 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS, PAGE 57. 

THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF EACH LOT OR PARCEL 
SHOWN ON THIS DIAGRAM SHALL BE THOSE LINES AND 
DIMENSIONS AS SHOWN ON THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS 
MAPS FOR THOSE PARCELS LISTED. 

THE FRESNO COUNTY ASSESSORS MAPS SHALL GOVERN FOR 
ALL DETAILS CONCERNING THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF 
SUCH LOTS OF PARCELS. 

ANNEXATION MAP NO. 58 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2004-1 
(POLICE AND FIRE SERVICES) 

0 250' 
E-

scALE : , .. = 500' 
CITY OF CLOVIS 

COUNTY OF FRESNO 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

ATTACHMENT 2

33



 

Claim Rejection Espinosa  8/27/2019 7:38:03 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department  

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: General Services - Approval – Claim Rejection of General Liability 
claim on behalf of Bryon Espinosa. 

  
 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Reject the general liability claim filed by Bryon Espinosa.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On July 19, 2019, a general liability claim was filed against the City on behalf of Bryon 
Espinosa. The claim was insufficient per Government Code section 910(f) and sent back 
to Mr. Espinosa for correction. On August 12, 2019, Mr. Espinosa resubmitted his claim 
and corrected the aforementioned item, which was considered legally sufficient and timely.  
 
Mr. Espinosa alleges that on January 28, 2019, the Clovis Police Department entered his 
home without a warrant or probable cause to arrest, which subsequently lead to officers 
using excessive force during an arrest, while causing injury and emotional damages to Mr. 
Espinosa.  

 
Mr. Espinosa seeks damages for pain and suffering, medical bills, loss of work and more 
in the amount of excess of $3,000,000. The claim has been filed as a “civil unlimited case”.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Rejection of the claim does not result in any fiscal impact.   
 
 
 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        7 

          City Manager: LS 

  

34



City Council Report 
Claim Rejection Espinosa 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

Claim Rejection 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 2 of 2 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the claim be rejected. The City is not liable for this claim. In addition, 
by rejecting this claim the time in which lawsuits may be filed against the City will begin to 
run. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
A letter will be sent to the claimant informing him that the claim has been rejected. 
 
Prepared by: Charles W. Johnson, Management Analyst  
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
  
 

35



 

Claim Rejection Rivas 8/28/2019 6:04:23 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department  

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: General Services - Approval – Claim Rejection of the General 
Liability Claim for Jose Gilberto Rivas.  

  
 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Reject the general liability claim filed by Jose Gilberto Rivas.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On July 8, 2019, a general liability claim was filed against the City by Jose Gilberto Rivas. 
The claim was insufficient per Government Code section 910(f) and sent back to Mr. Rivas 
for correction. On July 29, 2019, Mr. Rivas resubmitted his claim and corrected the 
aforementioned item, which was considered legally sufficient and timely.  

 
On June 24, 2019, Mr. Rivas allegedly fell and injured himself on the Old Town Trail Head 
south of Clovis Avenue and Scott Street in Clovis, CA. Mr. Rivas stated a large piece of 
concrete wall near the trail bridge was located in the middle of the trail, which caused him 
to fall and injury himself.   

 
Mr. Rivas feels the City was negligent by not ensuring the City trail was safe and free from 
hazards. Mr. Rivas seeks damages for pain and suffering, and medical bills. The claim 
has been filed as a “civil unlimited case”.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Rejection of the claim does not result in any fiscal impact.   
 
 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        8 

          City Manager: LS 

  

36



City Council Report 
Claim Rejection Rivas 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

Claim Rejection - Rivas 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 2 of 2 

 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the claim be rejected. The City is not liable for this claim. In addition, 
by rejecting this claim the time in which lawsuits may be filed against the City will begin to 
run. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
A letter will be sent to the claimant informing him that the claim has been rejected. 
 
Prepared by: Charles W. Johnson, Management Analyst  
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
  
 

37



 

Compensation Amendment 8/27/2019 7:40:28 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: General Services - Approval – Res. 19-___, Amending the City’s 
Compensation Plan by Revising the Salary Range for the Planning 
and Development Administrative Manager Classification from 
$9,735-$11,834 to $8,335-$10,133. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___ 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For City Council to approve a resolution amending the City’s compensation plan by adopting 
a revised salary range for the Planning and Development Administrative Manager 
Classification. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
It is recommended that the Planning and Development Administrative Manager 
classification’s monthly salary range be amended to $8,335 - $10,133. Amending the salary 
range is recommended in order to address the revised duties. The job specification was 
revised in April 2019, by the Planning and Development Department management staff. 
Revision of the City’s Compensation Plan requires Council approval. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Planning and Development Administrative Manager classification is a management 
position in the Planning and Development Services Department. This single-position 
classification reports to the Assistant Planning and Development Services Director and 
the incumbent will be responsible for planning and organizing the administrative 
operations of the department.  With an upcoming recruitment, the department reviewed 
the updated job description and believes that the revised salary range of $8,335-$10,133 
would be more in line with the revised job description. The incumbent will now be reporting 
to the Assistant Planning and Development Services Director and will no longer report to 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:       9 

          City Manager: LS 

  

38



City Council Report 
Compensation Amendment 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

Compensation Amendment 8/27/2019 7:40:28 PM Page 2 of 2 

the Director of Planning and Development Services. The duties have changed and the 
incumbent has been given less decision making authority. The job duties were revised to 
include more support functions to the Assistant Director. This would include budget 
support but will no longer include budget oversight. The position will take direction from 
the Assistant Director and will be responsible for supporting the needs of the department. 
 
The current monthly salary range for the Planning and Development Administrative 
Manager classification is $9735-$11,834. The proposed new monthly salary range is 
$8,335-$10,133, and would be more equitable with the revisions previously made to this 
classification. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The recommended salary range adjustment will result in a decrease in salary costs in FY 19-
20 of approximately $10,000. This position is budgeted in the Planning and Development 
Services Department budget.  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The recommended adjustment to the Planning and Development Administrative Manager 
classification salary range will address the revised duties that will be assigned to the 
incumbent. The recommended salary range for the Planning and Development 
Administrative Manager Classification is reasonable, given the breadth of duties and 
responsibilities of the classification. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
The City’s Compensation Plan will be adjusted to include the recommended revision to the 
salary range of the Planning and Development Administrative Manager classification. 
 
Prepared by: Lori Shively, Personnel/Risk Manager 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
  
 

39



ATTACHMENT 1 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 19- ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS APPROVING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY’S  COMPENSATION PLAN REGARDING THE 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER CLASSIFICATION 
 
 

The City Council of the City of Clovis resolves as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, the City maintains a Compensation Plan designed to provide reasonable 

compensation for City classifications; and,  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to adjust salary ranges of classifications from time to time in 

order to maintain appropriate internal and external compensation levels; and,  
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that it is appropriate to adjust the salary range of the 

Planning and Development Administrative Manager classification in recognition of 
the classification’s duties and in order to address the revised responsibilities; and,  

 
WHEREAS, revision of the City’s Compensation Plan requires approval of the City 

Council. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis that the 

City’s Compensation Plan shall be amended to include a revised monthly salary 
range for the Planning and Development Administrative Manager classification of 
$8,335 - $10,133.  

  
* * * * * * * * * * * 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on September 3, 2019 by the following vote to wit: 
 

AYES:   
 

NOES:   
 

ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
 

 Dated:   
 
 

___________________________  __________________________ 
                Mayor                             City Clerk 
 

40



 

Crime Bond Resolution 8/27/2019 7:41:25 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: General Services Department  

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: General Services – Approval – Res. 19-___, Approving Government 
Crime Policies for the Purpose of Bonding City Officers and 
Employees and Establishing Policy Limits 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___, Crime Bond Resolution 
 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution stating that the City’s government crime 
insurance policy satisfies Government Code §36518 and §1463, and establishes the 
coverage limits of said policy to $5 million with a maximum deducible of $2,500 per 
occurrence with the premiums paid by the City of Clovis.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
As required by City municipal code a surety bond is required for various officials and 
employees of the City. Per California law the City has the right to obtain crime shield 
insurance in lieu of a surety bond, as long as it’s adopted by resolution and approved by City 
Council.     
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Clovis is currently covered by a crime insurance policy through its liability 
coverage Joint Powers Authority, Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority 
(CSJVRMA), with a coverage limit of $5,000,000 and a deductible of $2,500 per occurrence, 
which is in line with the government code. The crime insurance program offers broad 
coverage for illegal acts committed by employees while on the job. Per California law the City 
has the right to obtain crime shield insurance in lieu of a surety bond, as long as it’s adopted 
by resolution and approved by City Council.     
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        10 

          City Manager: LS 

  

41



City Council Report 
Crime Bond Resolution 

September 3, 2019 
 

GSD - Crime Bond Resolution 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 2 of 2 

 
California Government Code (GC) §36518 requires City Council by resolution to establish a 
surety bond for the positions of City Clerk and City Treasurer. There are additional sections 
of the government codes section, which elaborate on the securing of bonds; however, GC 
§1463 provides the City and its officers with an alternative to bonding against crime through 
a crime insurance policy as referenced below:  
 
“1463. For the purpose of this chapter, a government crime insurance policy or employee 
dishonesty insurance policy, including faithful performance, may be provided as an 
alternative to official bond by any county or city…”  
 
The City ordinance requires that both the City Manager and Finance Director are bonded. 
Therefore, Staff is recommending that City Council approve the attached resolution 
(Attachment “1”) to ensure compliance with State law and CSJVRMA requirements.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. The City has a current crime policy through CSJVRMA with respective limits.  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
City staff is recommending to cover the positions of Finance Director and City Manager as 
expressed in the City’s municipal code for a surety bond.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
City staff will provide the CSJVRMA with a copy of the approved resolution to place on file 
for continuance of coverage.  
 
Prepared by: Charles W. Johnson, Management Analyst  
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk ___ 

 
 
 
 
  
 

42



Attachment 1 
 

RESOLUTION 19 - ______     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVING GOVERNMENT CRIME POLICIES FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF BONDING CITY OFFICERS AND 
EMPLOYEES AND ESTABLISHING POLICY LIMITS  

 
 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §36518 requires City Council by 
resolution to establish the penal sum of the bond for the positions of City Clerk and City 
Treasurer; and 

 
WHEREAS, California Government Code §36519 provides that the City Council 

may require bonds of any other officer or employee of the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, California Government Code §37209 requires execution of a bond by 

a Director of Finance where duties imposed by law upon the City Clerk are transferred to 
a Director of Finance; and 

 
WHEREAS, California Government Code §1480 provides that every officer agent 

or employee not required by statute to give an official bond may be require to give an 
individual official bond or other form of individual bond in the amount to be fixed by the 
appointing power and such bond shall inure to the benefit of the appointing power, state, 
county, or municipality by whom such officer, employee, or agent is employed as well as 
the officer under whom the employee or agent serves; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Clovis Municipal Code Section  2.2.110 requires the City 

Manager shall furnish a surety company bond to be approved by the Council in such sum 
as may be determined by the City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, California Government Code §1463 states… a government crime 

insurance policy or employee dishonesty insurance policy, including faithful performance, 
may be provided as an alternative to the official bond by any county or city, subject to 
approval by the presiding judge of the superior court and recording and filing as provided 
in §§1457 to 1460.1, inclusive.  An insurance policy procured pursuant to this section may 
be used as a master bond as though it were an official bond, subject to approval of the 
appointing power or the legislative body as provided in §1481; and  

 
WHEREAS, California Government Code §1481 (b) provides that notwithstanding 

any other provision of law when deemed expedient by the legislative body of a local public 
agency, a master official bond or other form of master bond may be used which shall 
provide coverage on more than one officer, employee, or agent of the local public agency, 
whether elected or appointed who is required by statute regulation, the appointing power, 
the governing board of a local public agency, or the board of supervisors of a chartered 
or general law county to give bond; and 

 
 
 

43



 

 

Attachment 1 
 

WHEREAS, California Government Code §1481 (c) provides that a master bond 
under this section shall be in the form and for the term which is approved by the appointing 
power or the legislative body of a local public agency and shall inure to the benefit of the 
appointing power, state, or local public agency by whom the officer, employee, or agent 
is employed as well as the officer or officers under whom the employee or agent serves. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Clovis hereby 
finds and determines: 
 
1. That the City Council deems it expedient that the bonding requirements for public 

officers and employees required by California Government Code, City of Clovis 
Municipal Code, or City Council Resolution, shall be in the form of a Government 
Crime Insurance Policy that provides coverage for the City of Clovis officers and 
employees; 

 
2. That the limits of the Government Crime Policy shall be at least $5,000,000 per 

occurrence for employee theft, with a deductible amount of not more than $2,500 
per occurrence, with sub-limits for other forms of loss covered by the policy as 
deemed appropriate; and 

 
3. That the premiums shall be paid by the City. 
 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Clovis held on September 3, 2019 by the following vote, to wit. 
 
AYES: 
   
NOES:   
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 DATED:   
 
  
 _________________________   ______________________ 

Mayor          City Clerk 
 

 

44



 

 

 
 
 

TM 6221 Final Map 8/28/2019 6:48:05 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services Approval – Res. 19-___, Final 
Map Tract 6221, located at the northwest corner of Ashlan Avenue 
and Locan Avenue (Wilson Premier Homes, Inc.).   
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___ 
2. Vicinity Map 
3. Copy of Final Map 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to approve Res. 19-___, which will: 

 
1. Accept the offer of dedication of parcels and public utility easements within Tract 

6221, and; 
 
2. Authorize recording of the final map. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The owner, Wilson Premier Homes, Inc., acting as the subdivider, has submitted a final map.  
The improvement plans are being processed by City staff. The improvements to be installed 
include curb, gutter, sidewalk, street paving, sanitary sewers, water mains, and landscaping.  
The subject tract is located on the northwest corner of Ashlan Avenue and Locan Avenue.  
It contains approximately 5.53 acres and consists of 23 units, zoned R-1. 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        11 

          City Manager: LS 

  

45



City Council Report 
T6221 Final Map 

September 3, 2019 
 

TM 6221 Final Map 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 2 of 2 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The subdivider will be installing sidewalk, sanitary sewers, water mains, and street 
landscaping, which will be perpetually maintained by the City of Clovis. 
 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The subdivision agreement has been executed by the subdivider and all development fees 
paid or deferred in accordance with Municipal Code. The agreement provides for the 
developer to complete a technically correct map and improvement plans and to complete all 
required improvements in compliance with the conditions of approval. The improvements are 
adequately secured. 
 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
The final map will be filed with the Fresno County Recorder's office for recording. 
 
 
Prepared by:  Sarai Yanovsky, Civil Engineer 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
  
 

46



   
ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION  19-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS  
APPROVING FINAL SUBDIVISION MAP FOR TRACT NO. 6221 

 

WHEREAS, a final map has been presented to the City Council of the City of Clovis 

for Tract 6221, by The City of Clovis, a Municipal Corporation, and  

WHEREAS, said final tract conforms to the requirements of Chapter 2, Part 2, of 

Division 4 of the Business and Professions Code and to local ordinances;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Clovis as 

follows:   

1. The final map of Tract 6221, consisting of three (3) sheets, a copy of which is 

on file with the City Clerk, be and the same is hereby approved. 

2. Approval of the Subdivision improvement plans for said tract are being 

completed by City Staff. 

3.  The preliminary Engineer’s Cost Estimate of development cost of said tract, a 

copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, be and the same is hereby approved and 

adopted as the estimated cost of improvements for said subdivision in the sum of 

$1,034,664.27. 

4. The offer and dedication for public use of the parcels and easements specified 

on said map are accepted by the City of Clovis and the City Clerk is authorized and 

directed to execute said subdivision map.    

5. This Council finds that the proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for 

its design and improvement, are consistent with applicable general and specific plans of 

the City of Clovis.    

6. Improvement Security, as provided hereunder and in said Subdivision 

Agreement, is fixed at one hundred percent (100%) of the remaining improvements to be 

constructed or the sum of $1,035,000.00 for guaranteeing specific performance of said  

47



   

agreement and fifty percent (50%) of the remaining improvements or the sum of 

$517,000.00 for payment of labor and materials furnished by contractors, 

subcontractors, labormen and materialmen in connection with the improvements 

required to be made or constructed by said subdivider in conformity with said 

subdivision map or said agreement.   

7. Subdivider shall furnish a bond in the sum of $103,500.00 being the amount 

determined by the City Council of the City as necessary for the guarantee and warranty 

of the work for a period of one year following the completion and acceptance of the tract 

against any defective work or labor done, or defective materials furnished.  Said bond is 

required to be furnished prior to acceptance of the tract by the City Council.  

   *  *  *  *  * 

 The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the 

City Council of the City of Clovis held on September 3, 2019, by the following vote, to wit:   

 
AYES:  
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 

DATED:   
 
 
            

                 Mayor      City Clerk 
 

48



Wil
l
o
w

P
e
a
c
h

Cl
o
vi
s

S
u
n
n
y
si
d
e

F
o
wl
er

Ar
m
st
r
o
n
g

Te
m
p
er
a
n
c
e

L
o
c
a
n

D
e 
W
ol
f

Shepherd

Teague

Nees

Alluvial

Herndon

Sierra

Bullard

Barstow

Shaw

Gettysburg

Ashlan

Dakota

L
e
o
n
ar
d

Hi
g
hl
a
n
d

Mi
n
n
e
w
a
w
a

HOLT

SERPA

WOLFE

SCHENGEL

BINASKI

BASGALL

HAUSSLER

HALTERMAN

HINKLE

ANTUNA

CUNNINGHAM

FLORES

ASHBECK

WHALEN

BESSINGER

MOUANOUTOUA

4ATTACHMENT A

CITY LIMITS SPHERE OF INFLUENCE

VICINITY MAP
Tract 6221 - Wilson Homes

August 29, 2019 Sarai YanovskyPrepared By: 

Tract 6221

2

49



50



51



 

Tract 6221 LMD Annexation  8/27/2019 7:44:08 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Planning and Development Services – Approval – Res. 19-___, 
Annexation of Proposed Tract 6221, located at the northwest corner 
of Ashlan Avenue and Locan Avenue to the Landscape Maintenance 
District No. 1 of the City of Clovis. (Wilson Premier Homes, Inc.).   
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___ 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to approve Res. 19-___, that will annex proposed Tract 6221, located 
at the northwest corner of Ashlan Avenue and Locan Avenue, to the Landscape 
Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of Clovis. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The owner, Wilson Premier Homes, Inc., acting as the subdivider, has requested to be 
annexed to the Landscape Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of Clovis as set forth by 
the Conditions of Approval for Tentative Tract Map 6221. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Wilson Premier Homes, Inc., the developer of Tract 6221, has executed a covenant that this 
development be annexed to the City of Clovis LMD No. 1.  An executed copy can be 
provided on request.  Council formed the original District on July 15, 1985, for the purpose 
of funding the maintenance of landscaped areas and parks. 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:       12 

          City Manager: LS 

  

52



City Council Report 
Tract 6221 LMD Annexation  

September 3, 2019 
 

 

Tract 6221 LMD Annexation 8/27/2019 7:44:08 PM Page 2 of 2 

Under the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and in accordance with 
Article XIII C and Article XIII D of Proposition 218, all the owners of property proposed for 
annexation have provided a written request and consent to annexation and have executed 
a covenant (petition) indicating acceptance of the annual assessment. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This project will add landscaping to the Landscape Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of 
Clovis shown as follows: 
 
      Tract 6221  Year to Date 
 
LMD Landscaping added:   0.410 acres  0.980 acres 
 
Resource needs added:   0.0410 person 0.098 person 
 
The resource needs estimate is based on 1 person per 10 acres of landscaped area. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The property owners for the subject tract and parcel map have requested annexation into 
the City of Clovis LMD No. 1. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

 
Tract 6221 shall become a part of City of Clovis LMD No. 1 and will be assessed next year for 
maintenance costs. 
 
Prepared by: Sarai Yanovsky, Civil Engineer 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____ 

 
 
 
 

53



  Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION  19-___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING 
ANNEXATION TO LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 OF THE CITY OF 

CLOVIS 

 
WHEREAS, City of Clovis Landscape Maintenance District No. 1 ("District") was formed by 

Resolution No. 85-78, adopted July 15, 1985, pursuant to Part 2 of Division 15 of the Streets and 
Highways Code (Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972), herein the "Act"; and 

 
WHEREAS, all of the owners of property proposed to be annexed to the District consisting of 

proposed Tract No. 6221, as described in Attachment "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference, have consented to said annexation and such annexation may be ordered without 
notice and hearing or filing of engineer's report, or both. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED AND ORDERED, as follows: 
 
1.  That the public interest and convenience require that certain property described in Exhibit 

"A" attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein be annexed into Landscape Maintenance 
District No. 1 of the City of Clovis for the maintenance and servicing of landscaping facilities. 

 
2.  The City Clerk shall receive and file the maps showing the boundaries of the areas annexed 

as set forth in Exhibit "A" which boundaries shall be used for assessment proceedings until and 
unless a change of organization is approved pursuant to the Act. 
   *  *  *  *  * 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City of Clovis held on September 3, 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
DATED:  
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 

   Mayor       City Clerk 
 

54



 

Attachment "A" 

 
 

LOTS 1 THROUGH 23, INCLUSIVE, OF TRACT MAP 6221, RECORDED IN VOLUME 
______, PAGES _____ THROUGH _____ OF PLATS, FRESNO COUNTY RECORDS 
 

55



 

Sewer Manhole Insect Control  8/27/2019 7:45:15 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Public Utilities Department  

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Public Utilities – Approval – Waive formal bidding requirements and 
authorize entering into a contract with Golden Bell Products, Inc. for 
insect control in sanitary sewer manholes. 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to waive the City’s formal bidding procedures and authorize entering into 
a service agreement with Golden Bell Products, Inc. in the amount of $75,900 to apply insect 
control to approximately 3,300 sanitary sewer manholes within the City of Clovis. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This year’s Wastewater budget includes funds to provide insect control to approximately 3,300 
sewer manholes, which is roughly half of the sanitary sewer manholes within the City. Golden 
Bell Products has the sole source right for distribution and application of Insecta, an EPA-
approved and registered product, within the State of California. The application of Insecta is 
guaranteed for two (2) full years from the date of treatment. In 2016, Golden Bell Products 
treated every sanitary sewer manhole in the City. In 2018, half of the City was treated, leaving 
the remaining half to be completed this year.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Wastewater maintenance staff have noticed an increase in cockroach population in the City's 
sanitary sewer system over the last several years. Insect activity is detected during routine 
sewer line cleaning and in response to resident complaints. Wastewater staff actively treat 
isolated infested sections; however, the treatment provided by Golden Bell Products is 
system-wide and has a longer lasting residual in comparison to any product used historically 
by the Wastewater section staff.  
 
 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        13 

          City Manager: LS 

  

56



City Council Report 
Sewer Manhole Insect Control 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

Sewer Manhole Insect Control 8/27/2019 7:45:15 PM Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Sufficient funds were included in the 2019-20 Wastewater operations and maintenance 
budget to provide insect control in approximately half of the sanitary sewer manholes within 
the City. The service agreement will not exceed the budgeted amount.  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
lnsecta is the product which Golden Bell Products, Inc. applies to sewer manholes for insect 
control. Insecta is the only registered product of its type and active ingredient labeled for use 
in sewer manholes. The product is a formulated product and is produced in an EPA-approved 
establishment. Golden Bell Products has used lnsecta in 60 other cities and sanitation 
agencies in California. Golden Bell Products holds a Qualified Applicator License and is 
licensed by the California Agricultural Department of Pesticide Regulation. The Public Utilities 
Department Wastewater section has previously worked with Golden Bell Products, Inc. and 
has experienced the superior performance of Insecta.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

1. The contract will be prepared and executed, subject to receiving performance 
security that is satisfactory to the City. 
 

2. Maintenance will begin in October and is expected to take approximately two 
(2) weeks to complete.  
 
 

 
Prepared by: Paul Armendariz, Assistant Public Utilities Director 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
 
 

57



 

New Hybrid Vehicle and SJVAPCD Grant  8/27/2019 7:46:46 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Public Utilities Department 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Public Utilities – Approval – Waive formal bidding requirements and 
authorize the purchase of a Hybrid vehicle from Future Ford of Clovis; 
and Approval – Res. 19-___, Authorize the Submittal of a Grant 
Application under the SJVAPCD Public Benefit Grant Program and 
Authorize the City Manager to be the Contract Authority. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Res. 19-___ 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. For the City Council to waive the City’s formal bidding requirements and authorize the 

purchase of an electric hybrid vehicle from Future Ford of Clovis; and  
 
2. For the City Council to approve a resolution authorizing the submittal of a grant application 

under the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD) Public Benefit 
Grant Program and authorize the City Manager to be the contract authority. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District currently has a grant opportunity 
available called the Public Benefit Grant Program. The purpose of the program is to fund the 
purchase of new electric, hybrid, or alternative fuel vehicles which will provide a direct benefit 
to Valley residents. The City is eligible under the program to purchase a vehicle at a maximum 
grant of $20,000 per vehicle. The program terms require that the City provide a resolution 
from the Council authorizing the submittal of the application and identifying the individual 
authorized to implement the new vehicle project. 
 
Funds were included in this year’s Fleet Capital Acquisition budget to purchase a new vehicle 
for the Utilities Section’s technical and administration staff. The new hybrid vehicle will be 
purchased locally from Future Ford of Clovis and will replace a 12-year-old, gas-only sedan.  

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        14 

          City Manager: LS 

  

58



City Council Report 
New Hybrid Vehicle and SJVAPCD Grant  

September 3, 2019 
 

 

New Hybrid Vehicle and SJVAPCD Grant 8/27/2019 7:46:46 PM Page 2 of 2 

BACKGROUND 
The program criteria requires that an eligible agency may purchase electric, hybrid, or 
alternative fuel vehicles with gross vehicle weight ratings of 14,000 pounds or less. The 
agency must have access to charging or fueling infrastructure and they must be based and 
have at least 75% of the vehicle miles traveled within the Valley Air District. The contract term 
will be for three (3) years and the City is required to maintain replacement value insurance, 
submit annual reports, and properly maintain the vehicle.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Obtaining a grant under this program greatly reduces the cost of acquiring the vehicle. The 
total cost of the Ford Fusion hybrid is $36,732.08. Applying the $20,000 grant funding 
available will reduce the amount being paid from the Fleet Capital budget to $16,732.08. 

 
Sufficient funds were included in the 2019-20 Fleet Capital budget and the user section, 
Utilities - Water, has accumulated the necessary funds to purchase the replacement vehicle.  

 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
This grant will allow the City to purchase a needed replacement vehicle at a reduced cost. 
Staff has evaluated the available equipment and has determined that the proposed equipment 
will meet the Utilities Section’s needs.  

 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
A purchase order will be prepared for the City Manager’s approval and sent to the vendor 
following the execution of an agreement with SJVAPCD securing the grant funding. 
 
 
Prepared by: Paul Armendariz, Assistant Public Utilities Director 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
  
 

59



 

 

RESOLUTION 19-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING TO MAKE APPLICATION FOR AND TO SIGN 

CERTAIN ASSURANCES WITH RESPECT TO APPLICATIONS FOR LOCAL, STATE AND 
FEDERAL PROGRAMS, PROJECTS OR GRANTS 

 
 

WHEREAS, Several Local, State and Federal programs allow public and non-profit 

transportation providers to apply for administration, capital, and operation assistance programs 

or grants; and 

 

WHEREAS, the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution District has a Public Benefit Grant 

Program with the objective of funding the purchase of new electric, hybrid, or alternative fuel 

vehicles which will provide a direct benefit to Valley residents; and 

 

WHEREAS, City of Clovis City Council must authorize someone by resolution, as the 

“Authorized Individual” to make application and administer the Public Benefit Grant Program. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Clovis Council hereby 

authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to make application for, to sign required 

assurances, and to administer the Public Benefit Grant Program with respect to applications 

for Local, State and Federal programs, projects or grants. 

 

*   *  *  *    * 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Clovis held on September 3, 2019 by the following vote, to wit. 

 

AYES:   

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
60



 

500 Club License Fees 8/27/2019 7:48:12 PM Page 1 of 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Res. 19-___, A Request from the 500 Club 
located at 771 W. Shaw Avenue to Amend the License Fees for 
Gaming Clubs and Card Rooms in the City. 
 
Staff: John Holt, Assistant City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Letter from 500 Club Requesting City Reconsider the Current 
Card Room License Fee Schedule 

2. January 8, 2018 Staff Report on 500 Club 
3. Minutes from the January 8, 2018 meeting 
4. Resolution 18-07 Approved January 8, 2018 
5. Draft Resolution Amending Fee Schedule 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
For the City Council to approve a request from the owners of the 500 Club Card Room, 
located at 771 W. Shaw Avenue, to amend the current card room license fee schedule. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Staff is in receipt of a request from the owners of the 500 Club to amend the current card 
room license fee schedule approved by City Council in January 2018 (Attachment 1).  In 
January 2018 the City Council approved a request to approve the transfer of the 500 Club 
Card Room License from Louis Sarantos to K & M Casinos, Inc. (see Attachment 2). That 
same night Council approved a resolution setting license fees for Gaming Clubs and Card 
Rooms in the City (see Attachment 4).  The current fee schedule is 6.25% of revenues in 
year 1, 8.0% in year two, and 10.0% thereafter.  The 500 Club is proposing to pay the City 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        15 

          City Manager: LS 

  

61



City Council Report 
500 Club License Fees 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

500 Club License Fees 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 2 of 6 

$2,750 per table monthly fee, which would generate $660,000 per year based on the current 
ordinance for 20 card room tables.   
 
BACKGROUND  
 
In May 2009, Louis Sarantos (“Sarantos”) made two requests of the City: (1) to purchase 
the entire 50% general partnership interest of George Sarantos in the Clovis 500 Club 
partnership; and (2) to relocate, expand, incorporate, and allow for the sale of the card room 
business to qualified third parties with prior State and City approval.   
 
The proposal was before City Council in various capacities on five separate occasions 
between 2010 and 2012.  On September 6, 2011, the Council approved necessary 
ordinance amendments and land use approvals for the expansion, including:  Ordinance 
Amendment OA2011-03, which amended the City’s Card Room Ordinance to authorize 18 
tables, as permitted by the California Gambling Control Act, and made other technical 
changes; OA2011-02, which amended Section 9.3.215.1 of the Clovis Municipal Code to 
add card rooms as a permitted use in the C-2 (Community Commercial) Zone District; and 
Site Plan Review SPR2011-06, which allowed for modifications to the structure and property 
site to accommodate the card room operation.   
 
The City of Clovis currently has a single card room governed by Chapter 5.6 of the Clovis 
Municipal Code regarding Gaming Club and Card Room Regulations in the City of Clovis 
(“Card Room Ordinance”).  Local licensing and regulation of gaming is in addition to, and in 
compliance with, regulations set forth by the California Gambling Control Act.  Sarantos 
submitted an application to the California Gambling Control Commission (CGCC) for 
purposes of obtaining a license to operate 18 tables that was approved by the CGCC in May 
2012, and the new location became operational in June 2012.   
 
In January 2018 the City Council approved a request to transfer the 500 Club Card Room 
License from Louis Sarantos to K & M Casinos, Inc. (see Attachment 2). That same night 
Council approved a resolution setting license fees for Gaming Clubs and Card Rooms in the 
City (see Attachment 4).  The current fee schedule is 6.25% of revenues in year 1, 8.0% in 
year two, and 10.0% thereafter.  K & M Casinos, Inc. is proposing to pay the City $2,750 per 
table monthly fee, which would generate $660,000 per year based on the current ordinance 
for 20 card room tables.  K & M Casinos, Inc. is currently operating 20 tables with City Council 
approving an additional 2 tables earlier this year (20 tables multiplied by $2,750 multiplied by 
12 months = $660,000).  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The 500 Club opened up in June 2012 at its current location on Shaw Avenue.   

62



City Council Report 
500 Club License Fees 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

500 Club License Fees 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 3 of 6 

 
 

The table above shows the revenues and fees paid the City by fiscal year 2012 through 
2019.  Average revenues were slightly above six million dollars, and fees paid the City 
averaged slightly less than four hundred thousand. The monthly average revenue over the 
entire term is $32,669 ($392,032 divided by 12 months). 
 
The following 4 comparisons are snapshots of what could occur based on how the 500 Club 
performs over the next 5 years.  
 
Comparison 1 – NEUTRAL - Current Fee Schedule vs. Proposal using $39,601 Monthly 
Average: 
 
K & M Casinos, Inc. has operated the 500 Club since March 2019.  The four month average 
for the 500 Club operated under K & M Casinos, Inc. has been $39,601.  As previously 
mentioned the current fee schedule is 6.25% of revenues in year 1, 8.0% in year two, and 
10.0% thereafter.  K & M Casinos, Inc. contends that the 10.0% fee disincentivizes them 
from investing in marketing and expansion.  In order to compare the current ordinance and 
what K & M Casinos, Inc. is proposing, staff compared what may happen under the current 
fee schedule with what is being proposed. 
 

 
 

REVENUES FEES PAID Monthly Avg.

2012-13 5,216,500$        350,487$          29,207$            

2013-14 6,453,393$        436,805$          36,400$            

2014-15 6,704,814$        459,433$          38,286$            

2015-16 6,216,869$        420,927$          35,077$            

2016-17 5,874,467$        384,702$          32,059$            

2017-18 5,647,555$        364,280$          30,357$            

2018-19 5,992,323$        327,588$          27,299$            

Average 6,015,132$        392,032$          32,669$            

Forecast under current resolution using $39,601 average last 4 months:

Current Fee 

Schedule

Annual 

Revenues K & M Proposal Comparison

Year 1 @ 6.25% 475,214$          7,603,426$       595,738$          

Year 2 @ 8.0% 608,274$          7,603,426$       660,000$          

Year 3 @ 10.0% 760,343$          7,603,426$       660,000$          

Year 4 @ 10.0% 760,343$          7,603,426$       660,000$          

Year 5 @ 10.0% 760,343$          7,603,426$       660,000$          

3,364,516$       3,235,738$       (128,778)$         

63



City Council Report 
500 Club License Fees 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

500 Club License Fees 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 4 of 6 

 
The table above forecasts revenues using the first 4 months under the operation of K & M.  
This forecast uses the $39,601 average monthly and forecast over the next five years.  In 
Year 1 at 6.25% staff estimates revenues would be $475,214 to the City.  Similarly in year 
2 at 8.0% staff estimates revenues would be $608,274 to the City.  And finally in year 3, and 
thereafter, at 10% the City would receive $760,343. The ($128,778) represents the amount 
of lost revenue the City would receive over a 5 year term comparing the current fee structure 
versus what is being proposed by K & M ($660,000) – again this takes the 4 month average 
and extrapolates over a 5 year term with no escalator.  If K & M were able to increase the 
monthly average, the ($128,778) would be a larger number.   
 
Comparison 2 – PESSIMISTIC - Current Fee Schedule vs. Proposal using $32,669 Monthly 
Average: 
 

 
 
 

The table above forecasts revenues using the overall historical monthly average of $32,669.  
This forecast uses the $32,669 monthly average and forecast over the next five years.  The 
$460,151 represents the amount of additional revenue the City would receive over a 5 year 
term comparing the current fee structure versus what is being proposed by K & M ($660,000) 
– again this takes the $32,669 monthly average and extrapolates over a 5 year term with no 
escalator.   
 
Comparison 3 – PESSIMISTIC WITH ESCALATOR - Current Fee Schedule vs. Proposal 
using $32,669 Monthly Average with a 5 year escalator of 5% per year: 

Forecast under current resolution using $32,669 overall average:

Current Fee 

Schedule

Annual 

Revenues K & M Proposal Comparison

Year 1 @ 6.25% 392,032$          6,272,512$       595,738$          

Year 2 @ 8.0% 501,801$          6,272,512$       660,000$          

Year 3 @ 10.0% 627,251$          6,272,512$       660,000$          

Year 4 @ 10.0% 627,251$          6,272,512$       660,000$          

Year 5 @ 10.0% 627,251$          6,272,512$       660,000$          

2,775,587$       3,235,738$       460,151$          

64



City Council Report 
500 Club License Fees 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

500 Club License Fees 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 5 of 6 

 
 

In Comparison 3, staff uses the overall monthly average of $32,669 and extrapolates over 
the next five years with a 5% escalator and compares it with what K & M is proposing.  In this 
example the City would receive $3,099,017 under the current fee structure, but would receive 
$3,235,738 under the proposed K & M formula, meaning $136,721 greater than the current 
fee schedule.  
 
Comparison 4 – OPTMISTIC - Current Fee Schedule vs. Proposal using $39,601 monthly 
average with a 5 year escalator of 5% per year: 
 

 
 
   
In Comparison 4, staff uses the overall monthly average of $39,601 and extrapolates over 
the next five years with a 5% escalator and compares it with what K & M is proposing.  In this 
example the City would receive $3,756,572 under the current fee structure, but would receive 

Current Fee 

Schedule

Annual 

Revenues K & M Proposal Comparison

Year 1 @ 6.25% 392,032$          6,272,512$       595,738$          

Year 2 @ 8.0% 526,891$          6,586,138$       660,000$          

Year 3 @ 10.0% 691,544$          6,915,445$       660,000$          

Year 4 @ 10.0% 726,122$          7,261,217$       660,000$          

Year 5 @ 10.0% 762,428$          7,624,278$       660,000$          

3,099,017$       3,235,738$       136,721$          

Forecast under current resolution using $32,669 overall average with a 5% 

escalator:

Current Fee 

Schedule

Annual 

Revenues K & M Proposal Comparison

Year 1 @ 6.25% 475,214$          7,603,426$       595,738$          

Year 2 @ 8.0% 638,688$          7,983,597$       660,000$          

Year 3 @ 10.0% 838,278$          8,382,777$       660,000$          

Year 4 @ 10.0% 880,192$          8,801,916$       660,000$          

Year 5 @ 10.0% 924,201$          9,242,011$       660,000$          

3,756,572$       3,235,738$       (520,834)$         

Forecast under current resolution using $39,601 overall average with a 5% 

escalator:

65



City Council Report 
500 Club License Fees 

September 3, 2019 
 

 

500 Club License Fees 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 6 of 6 

$3,235,738 under the proposed K & M formula, meaning $520,834 less than the current fee 
schedule. 
 
There are upsides and downsides of keeping the current fee schedule versus implementing 
what K & M is proposing.  The upside for the City of implementing the proposal is a 
guaranteed $660,000 per year and no need to audit.  K & M would be obligated to pay that 
amount.  Under the current fee schedule, if the economy were to slow and revenues were to 
decline, the City could see a reduction in fees paid the City.  It should be noted that the 
proposal to pay the City $660,000 averages $55,000 per month, compared to the overall 
average of $32,669, and the 4 month average under K & M of $39,601. 
 
The downside would be if K & M performs much better than the prior owners, the City would 
lose out on 10% of that increased number as demonstrated in the comparisons above. Staff 
recommends that if the City Council were open to consider the proposal, that a five year 
window be put in place to allow renegotiation, otherwise the 10% fee structure would revert 
in 2024.  
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff is recommending City Council approve the request to amend the Card Room License 
Fee from the current to the proposed flat fee of 20 tables multiplied by $2,750 multiplied by 
12 months = $660,000 total.   A vote in favor of the proposal is a conservative approach to 
guarantee a fixed income for 5 years which is significantly higher than what the City has 
received in the past and near term.  A fixed amount transfers some of the risk to the 500 Club 
to perform better than their predecessors.  
 
A vote in opposition is a vote in support that K & M will surpass current sales over the next 5 
years and the City will benefit from 10% of those additional sales. The proposed $660,000 
annual fee is 11% of the $6,000,000 average revenues for the 500 Club from 2012 – 2019.  
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
Staff will implement Council direction. 
 
Prepared by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
  
 

66



Attachment 1
67



68



69



70



71



72



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 1-A 1&2 

City Manager: (.;, 
--=-"'"'"-----I 

C I T Y of C L 0 V I S 
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

Mayor and City Council 

Administration 

January 8, 2018 

Consider Various Actions associated with the Clovis 500 Club card room 
located at 771 W. Shaw Avenue: 

a. Consider Approval - Res. 18-_, A Request to approve the 
transfer of the 500 Club Card Room License from Louis Sarantos 
to K & M Casinos, Inc. 

b. Consider Approval - Res. 18-_, Setting License Fees for 
Gaming Clubs and Card Rooms in the City. 

ATIACHMENTS: A Res. 18-_- To approve the transfer of the 500 Club Card Room 
License from Louis Sarantos to K & M Casinos, Inc. 

B. Res. 18_ - Setting License Fees from Gaming Clubs and Card 
Rooms in the City. 

C. September 13, 2010 Council Report (less Attachments). 
D. September 6, 2011 Council Report (less Attachments). 
E. May 21 , 2012 Council Report (less Attachments). 
F. Letter from Seller dated December 22, 2017. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

For the City Council to approve: 

a. The transfer of the 500 Club Card Room License from Louis Sarantos to K & M 
Casinos, Inc. and; 

500 Club 1/2/2018 2:29:15 PM Page 1of4 

Attachment 2
73



City Council Report 
500 Club 

January 8, 2018 

b. Approve a resolution setting License Fees from Gaming Clubs and Card Rooms in the 
City. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff is in receipt of a request from letter from James Betts, representing Louis Sarantos, 
owner of the 500 Club at 771 W. Shaw Avenue requesting " ... . the City of Clovis take all 
necessary action to approve the sale of the 500 Club Casino, 771 W. Shaw Avenue, Clovis, 
California, to buyers Michael LeBlanc and Kevin Barclay." 

The Sarantos family began renting the 500 Club building, at 500 Clovis Ave. , in 1953. In 
1974, Louis and George Sarantos bought the club from their parents and formed a 
partnership. In May 2009, Louis Sarantos approached the City about the possibility of 
expanding and relocating to the current location of 771 W. Shaw Avenue. 500 Clovis 
Avenue remains open as a bar and grill but there is no gaming at that location. In mid-
2012, the 500 Club opened up on Shaw Avenue expanding from six tables at the old 
location to 18 tables at the new location. The 500 Club pays the City a license fee based 
upon a percentage of the gross gaming revenue. At the old location the City received 
approximately $20,000 per year in license fees. At the new location, the City has averaged 
approximately $420,000 per fiscal year in license fees paid to the City over the past five 
years. In November 2017, Louis Sarantos approached the City requesting the City approve 
the sale of the Clovis 500 Club License to K & M Casinos, Inc. Staff is also recommending 
an update to the license fees. 

BACKGROUND 

In May 2009, Louis Sarantos ("Sarantos") made two requests of the City: (1) to purchase 
the entire 50% general partnership interest of George Sarantos in the Clovis 500 Club 
partnership; and (2) to relocate, expand, incorporate, and allow for the sale of the card 
room business to qualified third parties with prior State and City approval. 

The proposal was before City Council in various capacities on five separate occasions 
between 2010 and 2012. On September 6, 2011 , the Council approved necessary 
ordinance amendments and land use approvals for the expansion, including: Ordinance 
Amendment OA2011-03, which amended the City's Card Room Ordinance to authorize 18 
tables, as permitted by the California Gambling Control Act, and made other technical 
changes; OA2011-02, which amended Section 9.3.215.1 of the Clovis Municipal Code to 
add card rooms as a permitted use in the C-2 (Community Commercial) Zone District; and 
Site Plan Review SPR2011-06, which allowed for modifications to the structure and 
property site to accommodate the card room operation. 

The City of Clovis currently has a single card room governed by Chapter 5.6 of the Clovis 
Municipal Code regarding Gaming Club and Card Room Regulations in the City of Clovis 
("Card Room Ordinance"). Local licensing and regulation of gaming is in addition to, and in 
compliance with, regulations set forth by the California Gambling Control Act. Sarantos 
submitted an application to the California Gambling Control Commission (CGCC) for 

500 Club 1/2/2018 2:29:15 PM Page 2 of 4 
74



City Council Report 
500 Club 

January 8, 2018 

purposes of obtaining a license to operate 18 tables that was approved by the CGCC in 
May 2012, and the new location became operational in June 2012. 

In order for Sarantos to transfer the License, the application must be approved by the 
CGCC and a License must be issued by the City of Clovis. Approval of this action will 
provide Sarantos the ability to transfer the license in accordance with Chapter 5.6 of the 
Clovis Municipal Code. Approval of the transfer of the License is contingent on approval 
from the CGCC, and subject to the conditions set forth in the Exhibit A of Attachment "A" 
("K & M Casinos License"). 

Between 2009 and 2011 , staff developed the current ordinance to ensure that it had 
measures in place that could be implemented should the operation of the gaming 
establishment cause an increase in calls for service. The Police Department reports that 
the calls for service over the past five years have been minimal and that the business has 
been managed in a professional manner. The Clovis Police Department has performed 
background checks on the principals of buyers, and performed other due diligence in 
evaluating whether the Council should approve transfer of the License; and the Police Chief 
and City Administration recommend approval of the proposed transfer. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

When setting license fees in 2010, the overall goal was to ensure that a sufficient revenue 
stream was generated for the City to more than cover the cost of additional services being 
required to support the operation of the expanded card room at the new location. 

The current fee schedule charges the card room both a fixed amount of $2,000 per table 
per year and a graduated scale of the percentage of gross revenue beginning with 3% and 
climbing to 9% in year 7 for gross revenues over $2M. This fee schedule allowed the 
business to become established in the early years and when established allowed the City 
to benefit in a commensurate fashion. The analysis completed in 2010 showed three 
scenarios to give the Council an idea of what could happen. Scenario 3 was quite 
aggressive and began sales in year 1 at $5.0M with license fees estimated at $460K per 
year. Year 1 (2012/13) actual performance paid the City of Clovis over $500K and has 
averaged approximately $415K over the last five years. 

Staff is recommending changing the License fee to a straight 10% of Gross Revenue as 
defined in Exhibit "A" of Attachment "B". The effective average rate was 6.25%. Staff 
estimates that the difference between the effective average rate of 6.25% and the 
recommended straight 10% of Gross Revenue will generate an additional $250K per year 
for the City. It was always the intent to revisit the license fee in the future and when and if 
the 500 Club were sold. 

The table below is from the City of Fresno Master Fee Schedule dated November 2016. 
Fresno City Staff indicate that the Club One Casino is the only card room in the City of 
Fresno and paid the City approximately $1 .0M. The $1 .0M annual License fee equates to 

500 Club 12/26/2017 8:03:25 AM Page 3 of 4 
75



City Council Report 
500 Club 

January 8, 2018 

approximately $835K per month in Monthly Gross Revenue which equates to an average 
rate of 10% Club One Casino paying the City of Fresno. 

Card Room Gross Revenue Permit Fee (FMC 9-2132) 
Monthly Gross Revenue 
$0 - 800,000 
$800,001 - 1,000,000 
$1 ,000,001 - 1,200,000 
$1,200,001 - 1,400,000 
$1 ,400,001+ 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Monthly 
9% 

10% 
11% 
12% 
13% 

Staff is recommending approval of the request to transfer the License to K & M Casinos, 
Inc. based on the background results of the buyers and is conditioned upon approval by the 
CGCC. Staff spent three years (2009 - 2011) developing an ordinance to ensure that the 
sole card room in the City of Clovis will be managed in a fashion beneficial to both the 
operator and the City of Clovis. A well-crafted Ordinance is in effect, the seller has run a 
successful operation at the current location, and the gaming industry is heavily regulated by 
the CGCC. 

ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

If approved, staff will issue the License, monitor operations, and report back to Council on 
an as needed basis. 

Submitted by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager F 

500 Club 12/26/2017 8:03:25 AM Page 4 of 4 

76



RESOLUTION 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS 
APPROVING TRANSFER OF THE CLOVIS 500 CLUB CARD ROOM LICENSE 

FROM LOUIS SARANTOS TO K & M CASINOS, INC. 

WHEREAS, on May 21 , 2012, the City Council approved a Card Room License to Louis 
Sarantos for the Clovis 500 Club, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 5 .6 of the Clovis 
Municipal Code ("Sarantos License"); and 

WHEREAS, the License accommodated the relocation and expansion of an existing State 
licensed gaming establishment in the City, as reflected in the record of proceedings; and 

WHEREAS, the owner of the Clovis 500 Club, Louis G. Sarantos, a sole proprietorship 
("Seller") desires to sell and transfer the License, and associated assets, to K & M Casinos, Inc., 
a California Corporation ("Buyer"); and 

WHEREAS, Section 5.6.25 of the Clovis Municipal Code permits transfer of the License with 
approval of the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Clovis Police Department has performed background checks on the principals 
of Buyer, and performed other due diligence in evaluating whether the Council should approve 
transfer of the License; and 

WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Administration recommend approval of the proposed 
transfer, contingent on approval from the California Gambling Control Commission, and subject 
to the conditions set forth in the Exhibit A ("K & M Casinos License"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council resolves as follows: 

1. Approves transfer of the Sarantos License to K & M Casinos, Inc., subject to the terms 
and conditions set forth in Exhibit A. 

2. The transfer shall be contingent upon obtaining all necessary approvals from the 
California Gambling Control Commission. 

3. K & M Casinos, Inc. shall acknowledge, accept, and agree to the License conditions set 
forth in Exhibit A. 

1 

Attachment A 

77



The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Clovis held on January 8, 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

DA TED: January 8, 2018 

Mayor City Clerk 

2 78



LICENSEE: 

LOCATION: 

EXHIBIT A 
CARD ROOM LICENSE 

K & M CASINOS, INC., 
MICHAEL LeBLANC, PRESIDENT 

CLOVIS 500 CLUB 
771 WEST SHAW A VENUE 
CLOVIS, CALIFORNIA 93612 

ISSUANCE DATE: JANUARY 8, 2018 

In compliance with Clovis Municipal Code Chapter 5.6 - Gaming Club and Card Room 
Regulations and License Requirements, sections 5.6.13 and 5.6.24, the City of Clovis hereby 
issues a Card Room License to K & M Casinos to operate the Clovis 500 Club gaming 
establishment, 771 W. Shaw Avenue, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Compliance with Chapter 5.6 and all Laws. Licensee shall comply with all of the terms, 
conditions and provisions of Chapter 5.6 of the Clovis Municipal Code pertaining to Gaming 
Club and Card Room Regulations and License Requirements as now enacted or as may be 
subsequently amended, as well as all applicable laws of the City, State and federal governments. 

2. License Fees. Licensee shall pay the License fees and security deposit established by 
Council Resolution dated January 8, 2018. Licensee shall comply with the requirements of 
Section 5.6.17 of the Clovis Municipal Code pertaining to Licenses: Fees and Deposits. 

3. Security Measures. All security measures for the Clovis 500 Club, including but not 
limited to security plans, security cameras, and the requirements pertaining to security guards, 
are subject to approval and modification upon request of, and as directed by, the Chief of Police. 
Security measures shall address not only patron, employee and vendor security in the card room 
facility, but ancillary facilities associated with the Clovis 500 Club such as loading and 
unloading areas, parking areas, patron waiting areas, and paths of travel to the Clovis 500 Club. 

4. Trash and Debris. The premises of the Clovis 500 Club and any parking lot or similar 
facility used by the Clovis 500 Club shall be kept free of litter and debris. The manager shall 
cause the front and the rear exterior of the establishment to be thoroughly cleaned at least once 
per day. 

5. Violations. A violation of any condition of this License is shall be deemed to be a 
violation of the provisions of Chapter 5.6 of the Clovis Municipal Code and is deemed sufficient 
grounds for License revocation or suspension, imposition of fines or other action determined 
appropriate by the City Council. All terms and conditions specified in this license shall be 
enforceable as if set forth in Chapter 5.6. 

3 79



6. Indemnification. Licensee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its 
officers and employees, from any and all claims and actions brought against the City, its officers 
or employees, concerning the validity of this License. 

Licensee acknowledges, accepts, and agrees to the conditions of this 
License: 

Licensee: 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Date: 

J:\wdocs\00607\006\res\00545605.DOCX 

4 80



RESOLUTION 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS SETTING 
LICENSE FEES FOR GAMING CLUBS AND CARD ROOMS IN THE CITY 

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2010, in accordance with Chapter 5.6 and Section 5.6.17, of the 
Clovis Municipal Code, the City Council set License Fees for Gaming Clubs and Card Rooms in the 
City ("License Fees"); and 

WHEREAS, there currently exists one card room in the City, the Clovis 500 Club located at 771 
West Shaw Avenue, to which the License Fees are applicable; and 

WHEREAS, the current owner of the Clovis 500 Club, Louis Sarantos, is proposing to sell and 
transfer the Card Room License, and associated assets, to K & M Casinos, Inc., and 

WHEREAS, Section 5.6. 17, of the Clovis Municipal Code specifically contemplates reevaluation of 
the License Fees and Security Deposit provisions prior to any proposed sale of the Card Room 
License; and 

WHEREAS, the Council desires to revise and update the existing License Fees, to be made 
applicable upon transfer of the existing Card Room License held by Louis Sarantos. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council resolves as follows: 

1. The License Fees for Gaming Clubs and Card Rooms in the City shall be as shown in 
Exhibit A attached, effective upon transfer of the existing Card Room License held by Louis 
Sarantos. 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Clovis held on January 8, 2018, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

DATED: January 8, 2018 

Mayor City Clerk 

1 

Attachment B 

81



EXHIBIT A 

LICENSE FEES FOR GAMING CLUBS AND CARDROOMS IN THE CITY 

License Fees 

Each licensee shall pay to the City a License Fee based upon the applicable percentage of gross 
gaming revenue derived by the licensee during each calendar year. The annual License Fee shall be 
paid monthly in arrears on the 15th day following each calendar month and shall be accompanied by 
a statement setting forth the monthly and annual gross gaming revenues and calculating the License 
Fee payable to the City in a form reasonably acceptable to the City. The applicable percentage shall 
be as follows during the indicated years: 

Beginning ______ , 2018 Ten Percent (10%) 

Gross Revenue shall mean: Seat rental fees, tournament fees, membership fees, table revenues, and 
any and all other gaming charges directly derived from gaming activities conducted on or within the 
gaming club premises; provided, however, gross gaming revenue shall not include, but shall be 
reduced by, the amount of promotional chips collected from patrons. Gross gaming revenues also 
does not include any revenue derived from the sale of food, beverages, sundries, or from any other 
non-gaming activities. 

Security Deposit 

A Security Deposit shall be maintained with the City in accordance with the provisions of Section 
5.6. l 7(c). 

J:\wdocs\00607\006\res\00545722.DOC 

82



AGENDA ITEM NO: 
i-B 

City Manager: 
/-1"""-b~f------1 

- CITY OF CLOVIS -
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: September 13, 2010 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval - Res. 10-_ , Setting License Fees for Gaming Clubs 
and Card Rooms in the City 

AITACHMENTS: (A) September 3, 2010 letter from John Cardot, Attorney, 
representing the owners of the 500 Club 

(B) July 19, 2010 staff report to City Council regarding . the 
proposed expansion and relocation of existing card room 
(less attachments) 

(C) Draft Resolution 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
None 

RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to approve a resolution establishing license fees for a card room in 
the City of Clovis as referenced in Clovis Municipal Code Chapter. 5.6 - Gaming Club 
and Card Room Regulations and License Requirements. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Louis Sarantos ("Applicant") has submitted a letter (Attachment "A") through his legal 
counsel, Mr. John Cardot, regarding the City of Clovis license fees that would apply if 
the current ordinance, as amended, (CMC Chapter 5.6 - Gaming Club and Card Room 
Regulations and License Requirements), became effective due to the proposed 
expansion and relocation of the existing card room. Application of the fees contained in 
the resolution are conditioned upon Council approval of proposed changes to CMC 
Chapter 5.6 that will be coming before Council in the next few months. 

On July 6, 2010, Council approved the purchase and sale of the entire 50% general 
partnership interest of George Sarantos in the partnership by Louis Sarantos. The 
purchase and sale will close upon the approval of the transaction by the State of 

11 :28 AM I 9/812010 500 Club Sale Page 1 of5 

Attachment C 

83



. . 

City Council Report 
Card Room License Fees 

September 13, 2010 

California. On July 19, 2010, Council approved, in concept, the expansion, relocation, 
incorporation, and allowance for sale to third party, and directed staff to initiate 
ordinance amendments to Chapter 5.6 of CMC regarding Gaming Club and Card Room 
Regulations and Chapter 9.3 regarding Zoning. A copy of the July 19, 2010, report 
(Attachment "B") is included for additional background infonnation should you desire 
more detail on the history of the proposal. 

Staff has met with the Applicant on several occasions since the July 19, 2010, meeting 
regarding proposed amendments to Chapter 5.6 of the CMC. Both staff and the 
Applicant feel they are very close to coming to terms on the overall proposed changes. 
It is likely to take several months to process the ordinance, environmental work, and 
land use considerations. The rate of the license fee included in the ordinance will have 
an impact on the Applicant's business plan. The Applicant has requested that the 
license fee be set by resolution so that he can factor that amount into his business plan. 
The ordinance itself will include a reference to the license fee as set by resolution. 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Clovis currently has a single card room governed by Uncodified ·Ordinance 
86-6 and subsequent amendments. Should the card room expand beyond its current 
six tables, it will be subject to Codified Ordinance 95-27 and found as Chapter 5 .6 of 
CMC regarding Gaming Club and Card Room Regulations in the City of Clovis. Local 
licensing and regulation of gaming is in addition to and in compliance with regulations 
set forth by the California Gaming Registration Act. 

Specific Proposal 

The April 30, 2010, letter from Mr. Cardot details the proposal for the Clovis 500 Club to 
relocate, expand, incorporate and allow the sale to a qualified third party. The proposal 
is to relocate the gaming portion of the existing location (500 N. Clovis Avenue) where 
they operate six (6) card tables to the northeast corner of Willow and Shaw Avenues 
and expand to eighteen (18) tables at the new location. The existing location would 
become the Clovis 500 Club Bar and Grill and maintain similar operations less the 
gaming aspect. 

Procedurally, two ordinance amendments would need approval from City Council to 
allow for the relocation, expansion, incorporation, and allowed sale to a third party. To 
comply with the California Environmef!tal Quality Act (CEQA), an environmental 
analysis will be conducted to evaluate the impact of the proposal. Additionally, a new 
card room permit will be required as well as a new license. Amending Chapter 5.6 of 
the CMC regarding Gaming Club and Card Room Regulations in the City of Clovis 
could allow for the expansion, incorporation, and allowed sale to a third party. 
Relocation of the existing card room to another area within the city could be facilitated 
by an ordinance amendment adding card rooms subject to the licensing regulation to 
the C-2, Community Commercial, Zone District. Staff anticipates bringing both 

Page 2 of 5 500 Club Proposal to Relocate & Expand 
84



City Council Report 
Card Room license Fees 

September 13, 201 O 

ordinance amendments, with the environmental analysis and card room permit back to 
City Council in one package. 

Chronology of Proposal 

1. May 12, 2009, Staff met with Mr. Cardot regarding initial discussions 
regard ing the proposal. 

2. May 22, 2009, staff responded with a recommended course of action. 

3. July 13, 2009, staff goes to Council with the following - "For the City Council 
to consider preliminary proposal to amend Clovis Municipal Code Chapter 
5.6, Gaming Club and Card Room Regulations, in connection with the 
expansion and relocation of the existing card room, and provide general 
policy direction to staff regarding the processing of the proposal." Council 
Action - on a 4-1 vote, to approve option 3 of the staff report - which read 
"Consider the merits of a proposal to incorporate, expand I relocate to 
another site within the city. If the answer is affirmative, then the applicant has 
indicated that their proposal will officially be filed as a comprehensive 
application and city staff would return with a detailed analysis and measures 
that would be required ; the applicant would be required to pay the necessary 
deposit and fees for the application processing." 

4. May 3, 2010, staff receives comprehensive response to the city's May 22, 
2009 letter. On this date, the Applicant also depositeq a check with the City 
in the amount of $10,000 to cover the cost of the required staff to evaluate 
the proposal. 

5. July 6, 2010, City Council approved a request to approve an agreement for 
the purchase and sale of partnership interest in the Clovis 500 Club (from 
George Sarantos to Louis Sarantos). 

6. On July 19, 2010, City Council approved, in concept, the Expansion, 
Relocation, Incorporation, and Allowance for Sale to Third Party, and directed 
staff to initiate Ordinance Amendments to Chapter 5.6 of Clovis Municipal 
Code (CMC) regarding Gaming Club and Card Room Regulations and 
Chapter 9.3 regarding Zoning. 

License Fees 

Staff has performed an analysis of numerous card rooms across the state and what 
they are paying their respective jurisdictions. Unfortunately, they run the full spectrum 
from a nominal charge per table ($200 - $300) to a percentage of gross revenues 
ranging from 1% to 10%. Over the past four weeks, staff has met with the Applicant on 

Page 3 of 5 500 Club Proposal to Relocate & Expand 

85



City Council Report 
Card Room License Fees 

September 13, 2010 

numerous occasions to negotiate the license fees. While both parties began the 
discussions far apart, staff believes what is being recommended below is an equitable 
compromise that meets the needs of the Applicant's business plan and at the same 
time provides the City with a revenue source. 

The specific proposal is to charge the card room both a fixed amount of $2,000 per 
table per year and a graduated scale of the percentage of gross revenue beginning with 
3% and climbing to 9% in year 7 for gross revenues over $2M. This proposal allows the 
business to become established in the early years and when established allows the city 
to benefit in a commensurate fashion. The analysis below shows three scenarios to 
give Council an idea of what could happen. Scenario 1 is a conservative estimate of 
gross revenue beginning at $2.SM in year one and growing 5% each year for 7 years to 
$3.35M and total license fees ranging from $51K to $158K each year. Scenario 2 is 
more aggressive and starts gross revenue at $3.75M with license fees ranging from 
$89K to $308K per year. Scenario 3 is quite aggressive and begins sales in year 1 at 
$5.0M with license fees ranging from $126K to $459K per year. 

Scenario 1=Year1 at $2.5M Gross with a 5% escalation per year 

Gross 
Year Rate Gross Revenue Reduction License Fee Table Fee Total Fee 

1 3% $ 2,500,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 15,000 $ 36,000 $ 51 ,000 
2 4% $ 2,625,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 25,000 $ 36,000 $ 61 ,000 
3 5% $ 2,756,250 $ 2,000,000 $ 37,813 $ 36,000 $ 73,813 
4 6% $ 2,894,063 $ 2,000,000 $ 53,644 $ 36,000 $ 89,644 
5 7% $ 3,038,766 $ 2,000,000 $ 72,714 $ 36,000 $ 108,714 
6 8% $ 3,190,704 $ 2,000,000 $ 95,256 $ 36,000 $ 131 ,256 
7 9% $ 3,350,239 $ 2,000,000 $ 121,522 $ 36,000 $ 157,522 

Total $ 672,948 
Scenario 2=Year1 at $3.75M Gross with a 5% escalation per year 

Gross 
Year Rate Gross Revenue Reduction License Fee Table Fee Total Fee 

1 3% $ 3,750,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 52,500 $ 36,000 $ 88,500 
2 4% $ 3,937,500 $ 2,000,000 $ 77,500 $ 36,000 $ 113,500 
3 5% $ 4,134,375 $ 2,000,000 $ 106,719 $ 36,000 $ 142,719 

4 6% $ 4,341 ,094 $ 2,000,000 $ 140,466 $ 36,000 $ 176,466 

5 7% $ 4,558, 148 $ 2,000,000 $ 179,070 $ 36,000 $ 215,070 

6 8% $ 4 ,786,056 $ 2,000,000 $ 222,884 $ 36,000 $ 258,884 

7 9% $ 5,025,359 $ 2,000,000 $ 272,282 $ 36,000 $ 308,282 

Total $ 1,303,422 

Page 4 of 5 500 Club Proposal to Relocate & Expand 

86



Scenario 3 = Year 1 at $5.0M Gross with a 5% escalation per year 

Gross 
Year Rate Gross Revenue Reduction license Fee 

1 3% $ 5,000,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 90,000 
2 4% $ 5,250,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 130,000 
3 5% $ 5,512,500 $ 2,000,000 $ 175,625 
4 6% $ 5,788,125 $ 2,000,000 $ 227,288 
5 7% $ 6,077,531 $ 2,000,000 $ 285,427 
6 8% $ 6,381 ,408 $ 2,000,000 $ 350,513 
7 9% $ 6,700,478 $ 2,000,000 $ 423,043 

City Council Report 
Card Room License Fees 

September 13, 2010 

Table Fee Total Fee 
$ 36,000 $ 126,000 
$ 36,000 $ 166,000 
$ 36,000 $211,625 
$ 36,000 $ 263,288 
$ 36,000 $ 321 ,427 
$ 36,000 $ 386,513 
$ 36,000 $ 459,043 

Total $ 1,933,895 

While exact performance is unknown at this time, staff estimates that the operation 
would begin at or near the conservative estimate in the first two years, and if 
successful, move to the optimistic forecast shortly thereafter. 

The ordinance regulating card rooms in the city will be developed to minimize the 
impact on city operations. The overall goal is to have enough regulatory authority so 
that in the event, the operation does become a drain on city resources, action can be 
taken to remedy, while at the same time not being overly regulatory that would impact 
the ability of the business to operate a successful enterprise. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
See analysis above. 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
License fees will have an impact on the Applicant's business plan. It will take several 
months to move forward with the required ordinances for approval. The Applicant has 
requested we come to terms on the license fee now so that he could determine if he 
should move forward with the proposal. 

ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff will notify the Applicant of City Council's ruling. 

Submitted by: 
(£olt, Assistant City Manager I City Clerk) 

Page 5 of 5 500 Club Proposal to Relocate & Expand 

87



AGENDA ITEM NO: 

City Manager: 

- CITY OF CLOVIS -
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Planning and Development Services 

DATE: September 6, 2011 

SUBJECT: Consider various actions in connection with the relocation and expansion 
of the Clovis 500 Club card room from 500 Clovis Avenue to 771 W. Shaw 
Avenue, Suite #101-108. The expansion would increase the number of 
permissible tables for gaming from 6 to 18. 

Consider Approval - Res. 11-_, A request to approve an Environmental 
Finding of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for OA2011-02, OA2011-03, 
SPR201 1-06 and issuance of a card room license. 

Consider Introduction - Ord. 11-_, A request to approve OA2011-02 an 
ordinance amendment to Section 9.3.215.1 of the Clovis Municipal Code 
to add card rooms as a permitted use in the C-2 (Community Commercial) 
Zone District, subject to the provisions of Chapter 5.6 which require the 
issuance of a gaming club license from the City and amendment to 
Section 9.3.215.4 of the Clovis Municipal Code to remove card rooms as 
a use expressly prohibited in the C-2 (Community Commercial) Zone 
District. Clovis 500 Club, applicant. 

Consider Introduction - Ord. 11-_, A request to approve OA2011-03 an 
ordinance amendment to various sections of Chapter 5.6 of Title 5 of the 
Clovis Municipal Code pertaining to gaming club and card room 
regulations and license requirements. Clovis 500 Club, applicant. 

Consider Approval - Res. 11-_ , SPR2011-06, A request to approve a 
site plan review for a change in use at 771 W. Shaw Avenue, Suite #101-
108 for a card room, restaurant, bar, and outdoor patios. Western Village, 
Inc., a California Corporation, owner; Clovis 500 Club, applicant; John 
Cardot, representative. 

OA2011-02, OA201 1-03, 
SPR2011 -06 8/29/2011 2:44:53 PM 

Attachment D 

88



A TI ACHMENTS: 

City Council Report 
OA2011-02, OA2011-03, SPR2011-06 

September 6, 201 1 

Exhibit A: 
Exhibit B: 

Conditions of Approval 
Site Plan 

Exhibit C: Floor Plan 
Exhibit D: 
Attachment 1: 
Attachment 2: 
Attachment 3: 
Attachment 4: 
Attachment 5: 

Attachment 6: 
Attachment 7: 
Attachment 8: 
Attachment 9: 
Attachment 1 O: 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

Elevations 
Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Draft CEQA Resolution 
Draft Ordinance, OA2011-02 
Draft Ordinance, OA2011-03 (showing changes) 
Draft Ordinance, OA2011-03 (clean version) 
Draft Resolution, SPR2011-06 
May 4, 2011 , Operational Statement from Louis Sarantos 
Chronology of Proposal 
Correspondence 
July 19, 2011 letter from the Bureau of Gambling Control 

The Planning Commission and Staff recommend that the City Council: 

1. Approve Res. 11-_, adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration for OA2011-02, 
OA2011-03, and SPR2011-06, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines; and 

2. Approve Ordinance Amendment OA2011 -02 amending Section 9.3.215.1 of the 
Clovis Municipal Code to add card rooms as a permitted use in the C-2 
(Community Commercial) Zone District, subject to the provisions of Chapter 5.6 
which require the issuance of a gaming club license from the City and amending 
Section 9.3.215.4 to remove card rooms as a use expressly prohibited in the C-2 
Zone District; and 

3. Approve Site Plan Review SPR2011-06, to allow for a card room, restaurant, 
bar, and outdoor patios at 771 W. Shaw Avenue Suites 101-108 subject to the 
attached conditions of approval listed in Exhibit "A". 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 

4. Approve Ordinance Amendment OA2011 -03 amending various sections of 
Chapter 5.6 of Title 5 of the Clovis Municipal Code pertaining to gaming club and 
card room regulations and license requirements. (This item did not require 
Planning Commission action and was provided to the Commission for 
informational purposes.) 

OA2011-02, OA2011 -03, 
SPR2011 -06 8/29/2011 2:44:53 PM Page 2 of 23 

89



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

City Council Report 
OA2011-02, OA2011-03, SPR2011-06 

September 6, 2011 

In May 2009, the applicant Louis Sarantos ("Applicant") made two requests of the City: 
(1) to purchase the entire 50% general partnership interest of George Sarantos in the 
Clovis 500 Club partnership; and (2) to relocate, expand, incorporate, and allow for the 
sale of the card room business to qualified third parties with prior State and City 
approval. Over the past two years, staff has worked extensively with the Applicant to 
process his requests. 

On July 6, 2010, the City Council approved the purchase and sale of the entire 50% 
general partnership interest of George Sarantos. Actions being considered in this 
report relate to item 2 above (relocate, expand, incorporate, and allow for the sale of 
the card room business). 

This proposal has been before City Council in various capacities on four separate 
occasions over the past two years. The Applicant is requesting the following: 

1. Expansion (increasing the number of gaming tables). The 500 Club is restricted 
by law (Uncodified Ordinance 86-6 and subsequent amendments) and by space 
limitations at its present Old Town location to operating six (6) gaming tables. 
Expansion beyond the current six (6) tables would trigger Chapter 5.6 of Title 5 
of the Clovis Municipal Code, the City's codified Card Room Ordinance. Chapter 
5.6 was approved by City Council in 1995 and limited the number of tables to 
fifteen (15). The Applicant is proposing amendments to the Card Room 
Ordinance to allow for the relocation, expansion, and incorporation. The 
Applicant proposes to expand to 18 tables as permitted by the California 
Gambling Control Act. Approval of Ordinance Amendment OA2011-03 
amending various sections of the Card Room Ordinance will allow for the 
requested expansion. 

2. Relocation of Card Room. The Applicant is proposing to move card room 
operations from 500 N. Clovis Ave. to the Western Village Shopping Center 
located on the northeast corner of Willow and Shaw Avenues at 771 W. Shaw 
Avenue, #101 - 108. The proposed location would nearly quadruple the existing 
card room space and parking is located adjacent to major transportation 
corridors. (The Clovis 500 Club Bar and Grill would remain in Old Town Clovis 
less the card room.) Approval of Ordinance Amendment OA2011-02 amending 
Section 9.3.215.1 of the Clovis Municipal Code to add card rooms as a permitted 
use in the C-2 (Community Commercial) Zone District, subject to the provisions 
of the Card Room Ordinance, which require the issuance of a gaming club 
license from the City will allow for the relocation. Site Plan Review SPR201 1-06 
will allow for modifications to the structure and property site to accommodate the 
proposed card room operation. Site Plan Reviews are normally ministerial and 
approved by the Director of Planning and Development Services. SPR2011-06 

OA201 1-02, OA2011 -03, 
SPR2011 -06 8/24/201 1 8:04:41 AM Page 3 of 23 

90



City Council Report 
OA2011-02, OA2011-03, SPR2011-06 

September 6, 2011 

has been forwarded to the Planning Commission and City Council for 
consideration because of the related discretionary entitlements. 

3. Incorporation. Applicant is requesting amendments to the Card Room Ordinance 
to allow for incorporation as permitted by the California Gambling Control Act. 
Approval of Ordinance Amendment OA2011-03 amending various sections of 
the Card Room Ordinance will allow for incorporation. 

4. Allowance for sale to a qualified third party with prior State and City approval. 
The existing Card Room Ordinance prohibits the Applicant from selling or 
transferring any interest in the card room to anyone other than any existing 
licensee, their spouse, or their children. The Applicant desires that the Card 
Room Ordinance be amended to allow for the sale to any qualified third party 
with prior State and City approval in a manner consistent with the California 
Gambling Control Act. Approval of Ordinance Amendment OA2011-03 
amending various sections of the Card Room Ordinance will allow for the sale to 
a qualified third party. 

Ordinance Amendment OA2011-03 amending various sections of the Card Room 
Ordinance was provided to the Planning Commission for informational purposes only. 
The Planning Commission does not have jurisdiction over the Card Room Ordinance 
(Chapter 5.6) and associated Card Room License. On July 28, 2011, the Planning 
Commission did review the land use issues: whether the City should allow card rooms 
in the C-2 zone district and consideration of the Site Plan and recommended that the 
City Council approve these items. 

Staff is presenting the materials as a single package because the environmental review 
is designed to also cover amendments to the Card Room Ordinance as well as the 
subsequently issued Card Room License. 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Clovis currently has a single card room governed by Uncodified Ordinance 
86-6 and subsequent amendments. The applicant is requesting to expand the card 
room beyond its current six tables to 18 tables. The request to expand is subject to 
Codified Ordinance 95-27 and found as Chapter 5.6 of Clovis Municipal Code regarding 
Gaming Club and Card Room Regulations in the City of Clovis ("Card Room 
Ordinance"). Local licensing and regulation of gaming is in addition to and in 
compliance with regulations set forth by the California Gambling Control Act. 

The May 4, 2011 Operational Statement from Mr. Louis Sarantos (Attachment 7) details 
the proposed relocation and expansion of the 500 Club from the existing location at 500 
N. Clovis Avenue where they operate six (6) card tables to the 771 W. Shaw Avenue, 
Suite #101-108 (northeast corner of Willow and Shaw Avenues) where they propose to 
expand to eighteen (18) tables. The existing location would become the Clovis 500 
Club Bar and Grill and maintain similar operations less the gaming aspect. 

OA2011-02, OA2011 -03, 
SPR2011 -06 8/24/2011 8:04:41 AM Page 4 of 23 

91



City Council Report 
OA2011-02, OA2011-03, SPR2011-06 

September 6, 2011 

Procedurally, two ordinance amendments are required to allow for relocation, 
expansion, incorporation, and allowed sale to a third party. To comply with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), an environmental analysis has been 
conducted to evaluate the impact of the proposal. Additionally, a new Card Room 
License will be required. 

Amending the Card Room Ordinance (Chapter 5.6 of the Clovis Municipal Code) will 
allow for the expansion, incorporation, and sale to a third party. Relocation of the 
existing card room to another area within the City can be facilitated by an ordinance 
amendment adding card rooms as a permissible use in the C-2, Community 
Commercial , Zone District, subject to the Card Room Ordinance and licensing 
requirements. A conditional use permit is not necessary because of the strict 
regulations set forth in the Card Room Ordinance as well as the ability of the City to 
impose additional conditions through the licensing process. 

Historically, the site at 771 W. Shaw Avenue has operated as a bar and restaurant with 
live entertainment. As minor modifications are required to the site plan to 
accommodate the use a site plan review application is required. This application will 
allow for evaluation of the parking, patio additions, and the reuse of the building as a 
card room and restaurant. 

The entitlements to accommodate this request are being processed concurrently to 
permit consideration by the City Council of the entire package. 

• General Plan Designation: Commercial 

• Existing Zoning: 

• Current Land Use: 

• Adjacent Land Uses: 

PROPOSAL AND ANALYSIS 

OA2011 -02 

C-2 (Community Commercial) 

RetailNacant 

North: Commercial 
South: Commercial 
East: Commercial 
West: Commercial 

Currently, card rooms are only permitted subject to special permit in the C-3 (Central 
Trading District) Zone District. To accommodate a card room at the subject site 
requires amendment to the Section 9.3.215.1 of the Clovis Municipal Code to add card 
rooms as a permitted use in the C-2 (Community Commercial) Zone District, subject to 
the provisions of Chapter 5.6 which impose strict regulations on card rooms and require 
the issuance of a card room license from the City and amendment to Section 9.3.215.4 
OA2011-02, OA2011 -03, 
SPR2011 -06 8/24/2011 8:04:41 AM Page 5 of 23 

92



City Council Report 
OA2011-02, OA2011-03, SPR2011-06 

September 6, 2011 

to remove card rooms as a use expressly prohibited in the C-2 (Community 
Commercial) Zone District. 

OA2011-03 

Over the past eighteen (18} months staff, in conjunction with the City Attorney's office 
has met with the applicant on numerous occasions to discuss proposed amendments to 
the existing Card Room Ordinance to allow for what is being proposed. Amending the 
Card Room Ordinance (Chapter 5.6) will allow for the expansion, incorporation, and 
allowed sale to a third party. Attachment 5 is a copy of the Ordinance amendments. 
Two copies of the ordinance are provided in Attachment 5 - the first is the version that 
shows all of the changes compared to the original 1995 ordinance; the second is a 
clean version incorporating all of the changes for easier reading. In June staff sent a 
copy of the proposed amendments to the Bureau of Gambling Control for review. 
Attachment 1 O is a July 19, 2011, letter from that agency indicating that the proposed 
changes comply with applicable provisions of the Gambling Control Act. 

The recommended amendments reflect considerable work between staff and the 
Applicant. It is important to note that the gaming industry in the State of California is 
heavily regulated by the Gambling Control Act, last amended in 2008 
(http://ag.ca.gov/gambling/pdfs/gca2008.pdf). The Card Room Ordinance and the 
proposed amendments are intended to regulate gaming clubs in the City concurrently 
with the State of California, and to impose local controls and conditions upon gaming 
clubs as permitted in the Gambling Control Act. 

The Card Room Ordinance was developed to minimize the impact on City operations. 
The overall goal is to have enough regulatory authority so that in the event the 
operation does become a drain on City resources action can be taken to remedy, while 
at the same time not being overly regulatory that would impact the ability of the 
business to operate a successful enterprise. 

SPR2011-06 

Project Description 

The eighteen (18} card room, restaurant and bar would occupy approximately 12,667 
square feet of a stand-alone building located in the existing shopping center at the 
northeast corner of Willow and Shaw Avenues. The applicant is proposing to add two 
outdoor patios. The east patio near the entry is proposed to be 170 square feet and will 
be used for smoking and food service. The west patio is proposed to be 495 square 
feet and will be used for smoking only. 

The card room will operate 24 hours a day, seven (7) days a week, and 365 days a 
year. There will be food service during all hours of operation; however, the restaurant 
and bar portions of the card room will only operate from 6:00 a.m. to 2:00 a.m. 

OA2011-02, OA2011-03, 
SPR2011-06 8/24/2011 8:04:41 AM Page 6 of 23 

93



City Council Report 
OA2011-02, OA2011 -03, SPR2011-06 

September 6, 2011 

The anticipated number of occupants at the card room during peak operating hours is 
approximately 350 persons, including staff. 

A site plan review application is being processed to memorialize the change in use, 
changes to the site to accommodate handicap accessibility, and repairs and 
improvements to the exterior of the structure along with the construction of two outdoor 
patios. Site plan reviews are usually ministerial and approved by the Director of 
Planning and Development Services. This site plan review has been forwarded for 
consideration by the Planning Commission and City Council only because of the related 
discretionary entitlements. 

Parking 

Parking for commercial centers over 70,000 square feet is calculated at 4. 7 parking 
spaces for each 1,000 square feet of building area. This shopping center has 147 ,607 
square feet of leasable space. The outdoor patios will add another 665 square feet of 
leasable space for a total of 148,272 square feet of leasable space. The shopping 
center is required to have 697 parking stalls. Currently the shopping center has 833 
regular parking spaces and 16 handicap parking spaces for a total of 849 parking 
spaces which exceeds the required parking by 152 parking spaces. 

The center is currently occupied by several popular restaurants, a gym, a trade school, 
and other retail lease space. A number of these uses generate substantial parking. 
The applicant plans to use valet parking, with these cars being parked on site, in the 
parking lot north of the buildings behind the gym. This is a parking field that is not as 
convenient for patrons of the center to use and will insure that adequate parking 
continues to exist for customers patronizing this shopping center. 

Issuance of Card Room License 

After completion of the new building, and prior to opening, the Applicant will be required 
to obtain a Card Room License from the City. In connection with issuance of the 
License, the City may impose additional conditions relating to operation of the business. 
Those conditions, if any, cannot be determined until completion of the building and the 
submittal of detailed security and other operational plans, at which time the precise 
operations can be assessed. 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

The City of Clovis has completed an environmental review (an assessment of the 
project's impact on natural and manmade environments) of the proposed project, as 
required by the State of California. The City Planner has recommended approval of a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration (a written statement announcing that this project will not 
have a significant effect on the environment). Recommendation of a proposed 
Mitigated Negative Declaration does not necessarily mean this project will be approved. 

OA2011-02, OA2011-03, 
SPR2011 -06 8/24/2011 8:04:41 AM Page 7 of 23 

94



City Council Report 
OA2011-02, OA2011-03, SPR2011-06 

September 6, 2011 

Several studies were conducted to substantiate the CEQA findings for Air Quality, 
Greenhouse Gas, and Traffic (Appendix B and C of Attachment 1 ). The Air Quality 
Study showed that the Project would not create any significant air quality impacts with 
the incorporation of the identified mitigation measures. The Greenhouse Gas Analysis 
concluded that the Project would not contribute significantly to global climate change 
and would not impede the State's ability to meet its greenhouse gas reduction under 
AB32. Conclusions of the traffic study indicated that the Project would not significantly 
alter the peak-hour trip generation characteristics at the existing shopping center or 
substantially deviate from traffic created by previously existing/historical uses. 

Additionally, Staff requested that the applicant provide information to address concerns 
raised by a Council Member regarding the potential for an increase in crime and higher 
personal bankruptcies from expanded gaming in the City, with a corresponding increase 
in demand for police and social services, which if unaddressed could lead to physical 
changes in the environment. The applicant submitted a report (Appendix D of 
Attachment 1) that analyzes the findings of a 1998 California Attorney General Report 
and provides an excellent discussion of this issue leading to the conclusion that there is 
no evidence that expansion of the 500 Club from 6 to 18 tables will lead to a substantial 
increase in crime or personal bankruptcies with associated social and economic 
changes that could physically impact the environment. 

The applicant will be required to implement mitigation measures as part of a mitigation 
monitoring program to be adopted as part of this proposal. Mitigations are required in 
the categories of Aesthetics and Air Quality and are further explained in the attached 
Mitigated Negative Declaration (Attachment 1 ). 

The City published notice of this public hearing in the Fresno Bee on Thursday, August 
11 , 2011. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

In September 2010, City Council approved a resolution setting card room fees in the 
City of Clovis. The overall goal was to ensure that a sufficient revenue stream is 
generated for the City to more than cover the cost of additional services being required 
to support the operation of the expanded card room at the new location. 

The specific proposal is to charge the card room both a fixed amount of $2,000 per 
table per year and a graduated scale of the percentage of gross revenue beginning with 
3% and climbing to 9% in year 7 for gross revenues over $2M. This proposal allows the 
business to become established in the early years and when established allows the city 
to benefit in a commensurate fashion. The analysis completed last year showed three 
scenarios to give Council an idea of what could happen. Scenario 1 was a conservative 
estimate of gross revenue beginning at $2.5M in year one and growing 5% each year 
for 7 years to $3.35M and total license fees ranging from $51 K to $158K each year. 
Scenario 2 was more aggressive and started gross revenues at $3.75M with license 

OA2011 -02, OA2011-03, 
SPR2011 -06 8/24/2011 8:04:41 AM Page 8 of 23 

95



City Counci I Report 
OA2011-02, OA2011 -03, SPR2011-06 

September 6, 2011 

fees ranging from $89K to $308K per year. Scenario 3 was quite aggressive and began 
sales in year 1 at $5.0M with license fees ranging from $126K to $459K per year. 

While exact performance is unknown at this time, staff estimates that the operation 
would begin at or near the conservative estimate in the first two years, and if 
successful, move to the optimistic forecast shortly thereafter. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Prior City Council actions considered on July 19, 2010, directed staff to continue with 
the processing of entitlements to accommodate the proposed card room relocation and 
expansion. These entitlements included ordinance amendments, a site plan review and 
future issuance of a card room license. Staff and the Planning Commission therefore 
recommend that the City Council approve the environmental finding of a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration for the Project along with recommending that the City Council 
approve OA2011-02 and SPR2011-06. Additionally, staff recommends that the City 
Council approve OA2011-03 amending the card room ordinance. 

ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

If approved at introduction, the second reading of the Ordinances will be heard by the 
City Council at its September 12, 2011, meeting and if approved, will go into effect 30 
days after adoption. 

NOTICE OF HEARING 

Property owners within 300 feet notified: 48 
Interested individuals notified: 10 

Prepared by: Connie Combs, AICP, Senior Planner 

Submitted by: ~ 
Dwi1 ht Krpll, AICP David E:FlA1cP 

Deputy City Planner Dire tor cf Planning and 
Devi oprr ent Services 

OA2011-02, OA2011 -03, 
SPR2011 -06 8/24/2011 8:04:41 AM Page 9 of 23 

96



AGENDA ITEM NO: CC-8-1 
City Manager: ~ 

------I 

- CITY OF CLOVIS -
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: May 21 , 2012 

SUBJECT: Approval - Issuance of Card Room License in connection with the 
relocation and expansion of the Clovis 500 Club card room from 500 
Clovis Avenue to 771 W. Shaw Avenue, Suites #101-108. 

ATIACHMENT {A) Project Location Map 
{B) Draft License 
{C) September 6, 2011 Council Report {less Attachments) 
(D) May 4, 2011 , Operational Statement from Louis Sarantos 
(E) Chronology of events 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

For the City Council to approve the issuance of Card Room License in connection with 
the relocation and expansion of the Clovis 500 Club card room from 500 Clovis Avenue 
to 771 W. Shaw Avenue, Suites #101-108. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In May 2009, the applicant Louis Sarantos ("Applicant") made two requests of the City: 
( 1) to purchase the entire 50% general partnersh\p interest ,of George Sarantos jn the 
Clovis 500 Club partnership~ and (2) to relocate, expand, incorporate, and allow for the 
sale of the card room business to qu.aUfied thkd parties with prior State and City 
appmvat. 

This proposal has been before City Council in varrious capacities on five separate 
occasions over the past three years. Most recently, on September 6, 2011r , the City 
Council approved the necessary ordinance amendments and land use approvals for the 

500 Club 5/15/201 2 4 02 34 PM Page 1of5 

Attachment 'E 

97



City Council Report 
500 Club License 

May 21 , 2012 

expansion, including: Ordinance Amendment OA2011-03, which amended the City's 
Card Room Ordinance to authorize 18 tables, as permitted by the California Gambling 
Control Act, and made other technical changes; OA2011-02, which amended Section 
9.3.215.1 of the Clovis Municipal Code to add card rooms as a permitted use in the C-2 
(Community Commercial) Zone District, and Site Plan Review SPR2011-06, which 
allowed for modifications to the structure and property site to accommodate the 
proposed card room operation. 

As part of the September 6, 2011 approvals, the applicant is required to obtain a Card 
Room License from the City after completion of the building and prior to opening. The 
Applicant is currently completing tenant improvements at the new site and anticipates 
opening the new location on or near June 1, 2012. The City Council previously 
approved all of the requirements for the expansion and relocation and this item is the 
last approval required by the City before opening. 

The Applicant has worked closely with the Building, Fire, and Police Departments to 
ensure compliance with all applicable City requirements. Section 5.6.11 of the Clovis 
Municipal Code provides great detail with regard to what is required to issue a Card 
Room License. The Applicant is in compliance with all known requirements from 
Building, Fire, and Police. In connection with the issuance of the License, the City may 
impose additional conditions relating to operation of the business. Staff has 
recommended several conditions to address issues that may not be known until after 
the card room opens for business. Should there be any issues that arise when the new 
location becomes operational, there is sufficient language in the ordinance and the 
license conditions to address them. 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Clovis currently has a single card room governed by Uncodified Ordinance 
86-6 and subsequent amendments. The City Council previously approved expansion of 
the card room beyond its current six tables to 18 tables. The expansion is subject to 
Chapter 5.6 of Clovis Municipal Code regarding Gaming Club and Card Room 
Regulations in the City of Clovis ("Card Room Ordinance"). Local licensing and 
regulation of gaming is in addition to, and in compliance with, regulations set forth by 
the California Gambling Control Act. The Applicant has submitted an application to the 
California Gambling Control Commission (CGCC) for purposes of obtaining a license to 
operate 18 tables at the new location. The Applicant anticipates that the CGCC will 
approve the application to increase the number of tables to 18 and to move to the new 
location in May or June of 2012. 

In order for the Applicant to open at the new location with 18 tables, the application 
must be approved by the CGCC and a License must be issued by the City of Clovis. 
Approval of this action will provide the Applicant with a License in accordance with 
Chapter 5.6 of Clovis Municipal Code. Once the new location is operational, the former 

500 Club 5/15/2012 4:02.34 PM Page 2 of 5 
98



City Council Report 
500 Club License 

May 21 , 2012 

location, 500 Clovis Avenue (dba 500 Clovis Bar & Grill), will no longer be a gaming 
establishment. It will remain at that location as a bar and grill. 

The Applicant has worked very closely with all departments over the last three years 
that it has taken to process the project through the City and the State. The Card Room 
Ordinance that the Council approved in 1995, and amended last year, will become 
operational when the new location opens up. The Card Room Ordinance has a number 
of provisions that allow the City to amend the License at any time should the operation 
of the new location lead to an increased demand on City services. 

A copy of the September 6, 2011 staff report is included as Attachment (C) that 
provides detail of the prior Council actions and associated documents. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

In September 2010, City Council approved a resolution setting card room fees in the 
City of Clovis. The overall goal was to ensure that a sufficient revenue stream is 
generated for the City to more than cover the cost of additional services being required 
to support the operation of the expanded card room at the new location. 

The current fee schedule charges the card room both a fixed amount of $2,000 per 
table per year and a graduated scale of the percentage of gross revenue beginning with 
3% and climbing to 9% in year 7 for gross revenues over $2M. This fee schedule 
allows the business to become established in the early years and when established 
allows the City to benefit in a commensurate fashion. The analysis completed last year 
showed three scenarios to give the Council an idea of what could happen. Scenario 1 
was a conservative estimate of gross revenue beginning at $2.5M in year one and 
growing 5% each year for 7 years to $3.35M and total license fees ranging from $51K 
to $158K each year. Scenario 2 was more aggressive and started gross revenues at 
$3.75M with license fees ranging from $89K to $308K per year. Scenario 3 was quite 
aggressive and began sales in year 1 at $5.0M with license fees ranging from $126K to 
$459K per year. 

While exact performance is unknown at this time, staff estimates that the operation 
would begin at or near the conservative estimate in the first two years, and if 
successful, move to the optimistic forecast shortly thereafter. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Staff is recommending issuance of a License to the Applicant due to the amount of 
work that both the Applicant and the City have put forth over the past three years to 
ensure that the sole card room in the City of Clovis will be managed in a fashion 
beneficial to both the Applicant and the City of Clovis. A well crafted Ordinance is in 
effect, the Applicant has run a successful operation at the current location, and the 
gaming industry is heavily regulated by the CGCC. 

500 Club 5/15/2012 4·02.34 PM Page 3 of 5 99



ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 

City Council Report 
500 Club License 

May 21, 2012 

If approved, staff will issue the License, monitor operations, and report back on an 
annual basis. 

Prepared by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager 

500 Club 5/15/2012 4:02 34 PM Page 4 of 5 
100



I 
.l 

$ 
a' 

-... --~ - --· - - - / - - .... -

A TI ACHMENT (A) 

PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

SPR2011-06 
t-- I I I I I I I I I I v 

~-------/ 

I 
I 
' 

! 

City Council Report 
500 Club License 

May 21, 2012 

t±fil 
Soott 

R!ff 
Keats 

~ ffifB [] 
LJ 1-------1 Twain 

J 
-- - •• J 

l 
I 
'--- - - -- ------- -- -- - - . ~ -, 

mm 
J f1J_ 

Shaw 

···- - --- - I -1--q p .-CJ ..__.____.___-·-.., _-··-l 
i':i: 
I 

1 

500 Club 5/15/2012 4 02 34 PM Page 5 of 5 101



JAMES B. BETTS 
JOSEPH D . RUBIN 

VIA E-MAIL 
John Holt 
Assistant City Manager 
City of Clovis 
1033 Fifth Street 
Clovis, CA. 93612 

BETTS & RUBIN 
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

907 SANTA FE AVENUE 
SUITE 201 

FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 93721 

TELEPHONE 
(559) 438-8500 

TELEFAX 
(559) 438-6959 

December 22, 2017 

Re: Clovis 500 Club, Louis G. Sarantos Jr. 

Dear Mr. Holt: 

On behalf of my client, Louis G. Sarantos Jr., we would like to formally request 
that the City of Clovis take all necessary action to approve the sale of the 500 Club 
Casino, 771 W. Shaw Avenue, Clovis, California, to buyers Michael LeBlanc and Kevin 
Barclay. 

Should you have any questions with respect to this matter, I would be happy to 
make myself available. 

Very truly yours, 

~~ 
James B. Betts 
BETIS& RUBIN 

JBB:dm 

Attachment F 

102



Attachment 3 

MINUTES FROM CLOVIS CITY COUNCIL JANUARY 8, 2018 
 
6:14 ITEM 1A1 - APPROVED – RES. 18-06, A REQUEST TO APPROVE THE 

TRANSFER OF THE 500 CLUB CARD ROOM LICENSE FROM LOUIS 
SARANTOS TO K & M CASINOS, INC., AND ITEM 1A2 - APPROVED – RES. 18-
07, SETTING LICENSE FEES FOR GAMING CLUBS AND CARD ROOMS IN 
THE CITY. 

 
 Assistant City Manager John Holt presented a report on a request to consider 

various actions associated with the proposed sale of the 500 Club Card Room 
located at 771 W. Shaw Ave.  Staff is in receipt of a request from letter from James 
Betts, representing Louis Sarantos, owner of the 500 Club at 771 W. Shaw Avenue 
requesting “….the City of Clovis take all necessary action to approve the sale of 
the 500 Club Casino, 771 W. Shaw Avenue, Clovis, California, to buyers Michael 
LeBlanc and Kevin Barclay.” 

 
The Sarantos family began renting the 500 Club building, at 500 Clovis Ave., in 
1953. In 1974, Louis and George Sarantos bought the club from their parents and 
formed a partnership.  In May 2009, Louis Sarantos approached the City about the 
possibility of expanding and relocating to the current location of 771 W. Shaw 
Avenue.  500 Clovis Avenue remains open as a bar and grill but there is no gaming 
at that location.  In mid-2012, the 500 Club opened up on Shaw Avenue expanding 
from six tables at the old location to 18 tables at the new location.  The 500 Club 
pays the City a license fee based upon a percentage of the gross gaming revenue.  
At the old location the City received approximately $20,000 per year in license 
fees.  At the new location, the City has averaged approximately $420,000 per fiscal 
year in license fees paid to the City over the past five years.  In November 2017, 
Louis Sarantos approached the City requesting the City approve the sale of the 
Clovis 500 Club License to K & M Casinos, Inc.  Staff is also recommending an 
update to the license fees.  Mike Leblanc, representing K & M Casinos, Inc, spoke 
in favor of the requests and addressed questions of Council.  Louis Sarantos, 
owner, 500 Club Card Room, spoke in favor of the requests.  Discussion by the 
Council. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Flores, seconded by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, for 
the Council to approve a resolution approving the transfer of the 500 Club Card 
Room License from Louis Sarantos to K & M Casinos, Inc.  Motion carried 4-1 with 
Mayor Whalen voting no. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Ashbeck, seconded by Councilmember Mouanoutoua, 
for the Council to approve a resolution setting License Fees for Gaming Clubs and 
Card Rooms in the City with the following conditions: 
 
1. If a transferee other than K & M Casinos, Inc. is proposed for the Card Room 

License, the License fee set forth in Exhibit A will be reconsidered by the 
Council; 

103



Attachment 3 

2. Year 1: Beginning the first day of the month following the date the California 
Gambling Control Commission approves transfer of the Clovis 500 Club Card 
Room License from Louis Sarantos to K & M Casinos, Inc. This date shall also 
be known as the “Anniversary Date”. Until such transfer occurs, or if such 
transfer does not occur, the existing License Fee approved by the City Council 
on September 13, 2010 shall remain in effect: Year 1 = Six and One Quarter 
percent (6.25%).   

3. Year 2: Beginning one year from the Anniversary Date: Year 2 = Eight Percent 
(8.00%). 

4. Year 3: Beginning two years from the Anniversary Date: Year 3 and thereafter 
= Ten Percent (10.00%). 

 
Motion carried 3-2 with Councilmember Flores and Mayor Whalen voting no. 

 

104



Attachment 4
105



106



Attachment 5 
 

RESOLUTION 19- __ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CLOVIS SETTING 

LICENSE FEES FOR GAMING CLUBS AND CARD ROOMS IN THE CITY 

 

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2010, in accordance with Chapter 5.6 and Section 5.6.17, of the 

Clovis Municipal Code, the City Council set License Fees for Gaming Clubs and Card Rooms in the 

City (“License Fees”); and 

 

WHEREAS, there currently exists one card room in the City, the Clovis 500 Club located at 771 

West Shaw Avenue, to which the License Fees are applicable; and  

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Resolution 18-07, adopted on January 8, 2018, the Council 

established new License Fees, which became effective on March 1, 2019, upon the sale and transfer 

of the Clovis 500 Club from Louis Sarantos to K & M Casinos, Inc., and 

 

WHEREAS, the existing License Fees for K & M Casinos are set as a percentage of gross gaming 

revenues:  Year 1 6.25%; Year 2 8.00%; year 3 and thereafter 10.00%; and  

 

WHEREAS, K & M Casinos has proposed an alternative License Fee structure based upon a flat 

amount per table, to be paid quarterly; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Council is amenable to changing the way License Fees are structured on a five year 

(5) trial basis, with the License Fees reverting back to 10% of gross revenues after that time period 

and an opportunity to reevaluate the license fees six (6) months prior to the end of the trial period.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council resolves as follows:  

 

1. The License Fees for Gaming Clubs and Card Rooms in the City shall be as shown in 

Exhibit A attached, effective October 1, 2019.     

 

The foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Clovis held on September 3, 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 

 

AYES:   

 

NOES:   

 

ABSENT:  

 

ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  September 3, 2019 

 
 

_____________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor      City Clerk 

 

107



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

LICENSE FEES FOR GAMING CLUBS AND CARDROOMS IN THE CITY 
 

License Fees: 10/1/19 through 9/30/24  

 

For the Period from October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2024, each licensee shall pay to the City 

a License Fee in the amount of Two Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty Dollars per table per month.  

The fee shall be based upon the number tables authorized by the Municipal Code, regardless of the 

number of tables actually in use.  For the Clovis 500 Club, the current number of authorized tables is 

twenty (20) tables.   

 

Based upon the foregoing, the current monthly License Fee shall be Fifty Five Thousand Dollars 

($55,000.00).  

 

The License Fee shall be paid in arrears on the 15th day of the month following each month.   

 

License Fees: Effective 10/1/24 

 

Effective October 1, 2014, the License Fee shall revert to the percentage fee previously established 

by Resolution 18-07, as follows: 

 

Each licensee shall pay to the City a License Fee based upon the applicable percentage of gross 

gaming revenue derived by the licensee during each calendar year.  The annual License Fee shall be 

paid monthly in arrears on the 15th day following each calendar month and shall be accompanied by 

a statement setting forth the monthly and annual gross gaming revenues and calculating the License 

Fee payable to the City in a form reasonably acceptable to the City. The applicable percentage shall 

be Ten Percent (10.00%). 

 

Gross Revenue shall mean:  Seat rental fees, tournament fees, membership fees, table revenues, and 

any and all other gaming charges directly derived from gaming activities conducted on or within the 

gaming club premises; provided, however, gross gaming revenue shall not include, but shall be 

reduced by, the amount of promotional chips collected from patrons. Gross gaming revenues also 

does not include any revenue derived from the sale of food, beverages, sundries, or from any other 

non-gaming activities. 

 

Revaluation of License Fee 

 

Beginning on April 1, 2024, City staff will meet with K & M Casinos to discuss the License Fee and 

determine whether any changes are warranted.  The Council, in its sole discretion, may decide to keep 

the per table fee, establish a different per table fee, revert to the Ten Percent (10%) gross gaming 

revenue fee, or establish some other basis for the License Fee.  In no event shall the License Fee 

exceed the then existing per table fee, or the equivalent of 10% of gross gaming revenue as defined 

herein, whichever is greater.  If the Council takes no action, the License Fee shall be as set forth 

herein effective October 1, 2024. 

 

 

108



 

Sunnyside Ave. Purchases 8/27/2019 11:51:07 AM Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Community & Economic Development 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval - Res. 19-___, Resolution of Necessity to 
determine that public interest and necessity require acquisition of 
property for public purposes; and authorizing proceedings in eminent 
domain for two properties located at the northeast corner of 
Sunnyside Avenue and Fourth Street.  Addresses:  1403 Fourth 
Street; APN: 491-191-18 and 1421 Fourth Street; APN: 491-191-17.  
Owners: Flores Living Trust. 

Staff: Andrew Haussler, Community and Economic Director 
Recommendation: Approve  

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Property Location Map 
2. Draft Res. 19-___ Resolution of Necessity 
3. Offer Letter 
4. Offer Acceptance Letter – Flores Living Trust 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
Mayor Pro-Tem Flores has a financial interest in the property.  This requires Mayor Pro-Tem 
Flores to recuse himself and requires the eminent domain process to be adhered to in order 
to comply with Government Code Sections 1090-1091. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
For the City Council to hold a public hearing and approve a Resolution of Necessity to 
determine that public interest and necessity require acquisition of property for public 
purposes; and authorizing proceedings in eminent domain for two properties located at the 
northeast corner of Sunnyside Avenue and Fourth Street.  Addresses:  1403 Fourth Street; 
APN: 491-191-18 and 1421 Fourth Street; APN: 491-191-17. 
 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1245.240 requires the Resolution of Necessary 
be approved by a vote of two-thirds of all the members of the City Council, which means at 
least four votes in favor. 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        16 

          City Manager: LS 

  

109



City Council Report 
Sunnyside Ave. Purchases 

September 3, 2019 
 

1403 & 1421 Sunnyside Purchase  12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 2 of 4 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff is requesting City Council to hold a public hearing and approve a Resolution of 
Necessity to determine that public interest and necessity require acquisition of property for 
public purposes; and authorizing proceedings in eminent domain for two properties located 
at the northeast corner of Sunnyside Avenue and Fourth Street.  Addresses:  1403 Fourth 
Street; APN: 491-191-18 and 1421 Fourth Street; APN: 491-191-17.   
 
Staff seeks approval to purchase the properties for additional street right-of-way to 
accommodate street improvements along Sunnyside Avenue and to redevelop the parcels 
as affordable housing units.  Staff has reached an agreement with the representative of the 
property for price and terms.  However, the eminent domain process is required due to Mayor 
Pro-Tem Flores having a financial interest in the property, in order to comply with California 
Government Code sections 1090-1091.  As a result of Mayor Pro-Tem Flores’ recusal, each 
of the four remaining Councilmembers must approve this Resolution of Necessity in order for 
it to be approved. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Staff is requesting City Council to hold a public hearing and approve a Resolution of 
Necessity to determine that public interest and necessity require acquisition of property for 
public purposes; and authorizing proceedings in eminent domain for two properties located 
at the northeast corner of Sunnyside Avenue and Fourth Street.  Addresses:  1403 Fourth 
Street; APN: 491-191-18 and 1421 Fourth Street; APN: 491-191-17.  California Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 1245.240 requires the Resolution of Necessary be approved by a vote of 
two-thirds of all the members of the City Council.  
 
Staff seeks approval to purchase the properties for additional street right-of-way to 
accommodate street improvements along Sunnyside Avenue and to redevelop the parcels 
as affordable housing units.  Sunnyside Avenue is not able to be widened in this area due to 
lack of right-of-way on this parcel.  With this acquisition the needed right-of-way will be 
available to widen Sunnyside Avenue to improve traffic flow and safety in the area. 
 
The City and the Housing Successor Agency has also been active in acquiring properties in 
the area to revitalize the neighborhood with affordable units in partnership with several non-
profits over the past 30 years.  The acquisition would allow for at least two additional homes 
to be constructed in the area to be sold to low-income families.  Staff will return with a 
development agreement with a partner non-profit at a future date once the existing structure 
is demolished and site readied for re-development. 
 
Staff has reached an agreement with the representative of the property for price and terms.  
Nevertheless, the eminent domain process is required due to Mayor Pro-Tem Flores having 
a financial interest in the property, in order to comply with California Government Code 
sections 1090-1091.  Mayor Pro-Tem Flores is required to recuse himself from the item and 
has not interacted with staff on the potential sale/purchase. 
 

110



City Council Report 
Sunnyside Ave. Purchases 

September 3, 2019 
 

1403 & 1421 Sunnyside Purchase  12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 3 of 4 

Appraisals were completed by Palmer Appraisals at the request of the City and determined 
the values to be: 

 
1403 Fourth Street: $168,000 
1421 Fourth Street: $67,000 
Total value:            $235,000 

 
Under law the owner of the property is entitled to seek an independent appraisal at the City’s 
cost up to $5,000 per parcel.  However, in lieu of independent appraisals for each parcel, the 
owner requested the additional $10,000 as compensation for the Property.  In addition, the 
City is obligated to cover all proceeding costs and any customary closing costs.  The City 
made this offer pursuant to Government Code section 7267.2 to the Flores Living Trust on 
May 2, 2019 (Attachment 3). 
 
The Flores Living Trust accepted the City’s $245,000 offer for the Property ($173,000 for 
1403 Fourth Street, and $72,000 for 1421 Fourth Street) (Attachment 4). 
 
The property owner has been notified of the public hearing date and was provided a form 
with which to request to appear and be heard on the Resolution of Necessity.  
 
The findings for the Resolution of Necessity are: 

 
1. Public interest and necessity require the proposed project; 
2. The proposed project is planned and located in the manner that will be most 

compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury; 
3. The property described in the Resolution is necessary for the proposed 

project; 
4. An offer to acquire the real property, pursuant to section 7267.2 of the 

Government Code, was made to the owners of record as provided by law; 
5. The City has complied with all conditions and statutory requirements 

necessary to exercise the power of eminent domain (“the right to take”) to 
acquire the property described herein. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The acquisitions are included in the 2019-2020 Budget.   
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The eminent domain action is necessary in order to acquire the necessary right-of-way and 
allow the improvements to Sunnyside Avenue and the addition of affordable homes in the 
City of Clovis, and to comply with Government Code sections 1090-1091 due to Mayor Pro-
Tem Flores having a financial interest in the property. 
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
Staff and the City Attorney will pursue the eminent domain action in the manner required by 
law. 

111



City Council Report 
Sunnyside Ave. Purchases 

September 3, 2019 
 

1403 & 1421 Sunnyside Purchase  12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 4 of 4 

 
Prepared by: Andrew Haussler, Community & Economic Development Director 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

112



 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
Location Map 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

113



ATTACHMENT 2 
Resolution of Neccessity 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT PUBLIC INTEREST AND 
NECESSITY REQUIRE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY FOR PUBLIC 

PURPOSE AND AUTHORIZING PROCEEDINGS IN EMINENT DOMAIN 
 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears necessary and desirable that the City of Clovis (hereinafter 
"City"), acquire fee title to the real property commonly known as 1403 Fourth Street (APN 
491-191-18) and 1421 Fourth Street (APN 491-191-17), in the City of Clovis, in the County 
of Fresno, which is more particularly described as set forth in Attachment “A” and as 
depicted in Attachment “B” hereto (the “Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the project for this resolution is the acquisition of fee title to the 
Property for additional right-of-way to accommodate street improvements along 
Sunnyside Avenue and to redevelop the parcels as affordable housing units (the 
“Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property is owned by the Flores Living Trust (“Trust”), of which 
City Councilman Jose Flores is a beneficiary, and as a result of Councilman Flores’ 
interest in the Property, Government Code section 1090 prohibits the City from 
purchasing the Property from the Trust in a typical negotiated purchase and sale 
agreement, and consequently an eminent domain proceeding must be commenced in 
order for the City to acquire the Property as authorized by Government Code section 
1090; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Notice of Hearing on the Intent of the City Council of the City of 
Clovis (hereinafter “Council”) to Adopt the Resolution of Necessity, which Notice is 
attached hereto as Attachment “C,” was mailed to the owner of record of the Property in 
accordance with California Code of Civil Procedure section 1245.235(a) and (b), and said 
Notice of Hearing advised the owner of his right to be heard on the matters referred to 
therein on the date and at the time and place stated therein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the hearing set out on the Notice of Hearing was held on July 8, 2019, 
at the time and place stated therein, and all interested parties were given an opportunity 
to be heard; and 
 

WHEREAS, the hearing was then closed and the matter considered by the 
Council, as required by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Council has received and considered all relevant facts and 
evidence, including, but not limited to, the City’s staff report and matters referenced 
therein, facts which are otherwise commonly known, judicially noticeable and matters of 
public record, and all other relevant and proper evidence offered at the hearing by staff, 
affected property owners who made timely requests for hearing, and others who 
appeared and/or were heard. 

114



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CLOVIS, BY A VOTE OF NOT LESS THAN 2/3 OF ITS MEMBERS, 
DECLARES, FINDS, AND RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and, by this reference, 
incorporated herein as if set forth in full. The staff report on the Resolution of Necessity 
and all Attachments to this Resolution are incorporated by reference. 
 
 2. The City is authorized to acquire the Property for the Project by eminent 
domain proceedings pursuant to Sections 37350.5 and 40404 of the Government Code 
of California. 
 
 3. The Project is generally located near the northeast corner of the intersection 
of Fourth Street and Sunnyside Avenue, in the City of Clovis, County of Fresno, State of 
California.  The Property to be taken consists of that certain real property hereinafter 
described in the legal description attached as Attachment “A,” and depicted in the diagram 
attached as Attachment “B.”   
 
 4. Based on all evidence presented in this matter, the Council specifically finds 
and determines that: 
 
  a. The public interest and necessity require the proposed Project. 
 
  b. The proposed Project is planned or located in the manner that will be 

most compatible with the greatest public good and the least private 
injury. 

 
  c. The Property as described is necessary for the proposed Project. 
 
  d. The offer required by Section 7267.2 of the Government Code has 

been made to the identified and known owners of record of the 
Property. 

 
  e. The City has complied with all conditions and statutory requirements 

necessary to exercise the power of eminent domain (“the right to 
take”) to acquire the Property described herein. 

 
 5. The portion or interest in the Property, including any improvements thereon, 
which are authorized to be acquired by this resolution, is as delineated on the said 
attachments, being real property completely situated within the territorial boundaries of 
the City. 
  
 6. The City plans that the date of use of the Property for the Project will be 
within seven years from the date the complaint for eminent domain proceedings is filed. 
 

115



 7. The City Attorney of the City of Clovis is authorized and directed to institute 
and conduct to conclusion in the name of said City, proceedings in eminent domain.  The 
proceedings are to be in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution of California 
and the Code of Civil Procedure in order to acquire in the name of the City a fee simple 
estate in and to the Property herein described and such other interests as may be 
necessary for construction and operation of the Project.  The City Attorney is authorized 
to request and obtain prejudgment possession of the Property as soon as the same may 
be lawfully obtained.   
 
 8. The City’s Director of Finance is authorized to pay, out of funds authorized 
or received, for the acquisition of said Property, for prejudgment possession of the 
Property, and for all other costs and expenses of acquisition, including, but not limited 
to, final compensation for the take and all fees and costs charged for City services in 
connection with this litigation. 
 
  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Clovis held on the ______ day of September, 2019, by the 
following vote, to wit: 
  
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
DATED: _______________, 2019 
 

 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

Mayor       City Clerk 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

116



Attachment “A” 
 

Legal Description of Property 
 

 
APN: 491-191-18 

 
Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4 in Block 9 of Stanford Addition to Clovis, in the City of Clovis, County 
of Fresno, State of 
California, as per Map recorded in Book 7, Page 56 of Record of Surveys, Fresno 
County Records, Fresno 
County Records. 

 
 

APN: 491-191-17 
 
 

Lots 5 and 6 in Block 9 of Stanford Addition to the Town (now City) of Clovis, in the City 
of Clovis, County of 
Fresno, State of California, according to the Map thereof, recorded in Book 7, Page 56 
of Record of Surveys, 
Fresno County Records. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

117



 
Attachment “B” 

 
Map Depicting Property 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

118



 
Attachment “C” 

 
Notice of Hearing on Resolution of Necessity 

 

 

119



 
ATTACHMENT 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

120



 
 
 

 

121



 
ATTACHMENT 4 

 
 
 

122



 

ADM – Ord. 19-11 8/28/2019 6:49:21 PM Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: City Clerk Department 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consider Adoption – Ord. 19-11, R2019-004, A request to approve a 
rezone of a portion of the site from the R-A (Single-Family Residential 
– 24,000 Sq. Ft.) to the R-2 (Low Density Multiple Family Residential) 
(1 Unit / 3,000 Sq. Ft.) Zone District. (Vote: 4-0-1 with Mayor 
Bessinger absent) 

Staff: Ricky Caperton, Senior Planner 
Recommendation: Approve 

  

Please direct questions to the City Manager’s office at 559-324-2060. 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:       17 

          City Manager: LS 

  

123



 

Municode Presentation 8/28/2019 1:29:08 PM Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Presentation on the Municode agenda management system and how 
agenda packets will be delivered to Council Members.  

Staff: Karey Cha, Administrative Analyst 
Recommendation: Update 

Karey Cha will give a verbal presentation on this item. Please direct questions to the 
Administration office at 559-324-2060. 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:          18 

  

124



 

Voting Delegate 8/28/2019 1:42:44 PM Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Administration 

DATE: September 3, 2019 

SUBJECT: Consider Approval – Designation of Voting Delegate and Alternate 
for the League of California Cities’ Annual Conference and Annual 
Business Meeting, October 16-18, 2019 

Staff: Luke Serpa, City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Annual Conference Voting Procedures Report 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the City Council takes action to designate a Councilmember as the City’s voting 
delegate for the League of California Cities’ Annual Conference for transacting business at 
the Annual Business Meeting and that an alternate voting delegate also be designated. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Annual Business Meeting of the League of California Cities will be conducted in 
conjunction with the Annual League Conference, October 16-18.  In order for the City to cast 
votes on policy matters coming before the League, it must take action to designate a voting 
delegate and an alternate voting delegate who will be issued credentials for voting purposes.  
This authority may not be transferred unofficially and must be accomplished only by action 
of the City Council. 
 
 
 
 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO:        19 

          City Manager: LS 

  

125



City Council Report 
Designation of Voting Delegate 

 September 3, 2019 
 

 

Voting Delegate 12/7/2018 3:25:37 PM Page 2 of 2 

BACKGROUND 
 
Voting on official business and policy matters of the League of California Cities occurs each 
year at the Annual Business Meeting, held in conjunction with the Annual League 
Conference.  This year the Annual Business Meeting will be held in Long Beach, California 
on Friday, October 18, 2019.  The voting process for the Annual Business Meeting requires 
that a voting delegate be designated from each member city by action of the City Council.  
Credentials will be issued to the voting delegates when they sign in at the Annual Conference 
in order to enter the area for voting delegates and for actual voting purposes.  The attached 
report from the League of California Cities outlines the procedure to ensure integrity of the 
voting process.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
In order for the City to exercise its membership responsibility for policy direction of the League 
of California Cities, it is necessary to vote on such matters at the Annual Business Meeting.   
 
ACTIONS FOLLOWING APPROVAL 
 
The League of California Cities will be advised in writing of the City official designated as the 
voting delegate and the alternate voting delegate for the City of Clovis. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jacquie Pronovost, Executive Assistant 
 
Reviewed by: John Holt, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk _____  

 
 
 
  
 

126



ATTACHMENT 1 127



128



129



130


	Top
	1. Presentation Recognizing Joseph Guerrero
	2. ADM - Proclamation Honoring Soroptimist International
	ADM - Soroptimist Club Proc.docx

	3. ADM - 190805 Minutes
	ADM - Minutes 190805.docx

	4. Community and Economic Development - 2019-20 EDC Agreement
	CED - 2019-20 EDC Agreement SR
	CED - 2019-20 EDC Agreement ATT 1

	5. Community and Economic Development - EDC Qtr4
	CED - EDCQtr4 SR
	CED - EDCQtr4 ATT 1

	6. FIN - CFD Annex #58 ROI
	FIN - CFD Annex #58 ROI SR
	FIN - CFD Annex #58 ROI Res 19-__ ATT 1
	FIN - CFD Annex #58 MAP draft ATT 2

	7. GSD - Claim Rejection Espinosa
	GSD-Claim Rejection-Bryon Espinosa SR

	8. GSD - Claim Rejection Rivas
	GSD-Claim Rejection-Jose Gilberto Rivas SR

	9. GSD - Compensation Amendment
	GSD-PDS Compensation Amendment SR
	GSD-PDS Compensation Amendment ATT 1 RES 19-___

	10. GSD - Crime Bond
	GSD-Crime Bond SR
	GSD-Crime Bond Res ATT 1

	11. Planning and Development Services - T6221 - Final Map
	ENG - T6221 - Final Map SR
	ENG - T6221 - Final Map ATT 1
	ENG - T6221 - Final Map - ATT 2
	ENG - T6221 - Final Map - ATT 3

	12. Planning and Development Services - T6221 LMD Annexation
	ENG - T6221 - LMD Annexation SR
	ENG - T6221 - LMD Annexation ATT 1 RES 19-___

	13. PUD - Sanitary Sewer Insect Control
	PUD - Sanitary Sewer Insect Control SR

	14. PUD - New Hybrid & Air District Grant
	PUD - New Hybrid & Air District Grant SR
	PUD - New Hybrid & Air District Grant ATT 1

	15. ADM - 500 Club License Fees
	ADM - 500 Club Request to Change Fees SR
	ADM - 500 Club ATT 1 Letter from Owners
	ADM - 500 Club ATT 2 Jan 2018 Report
	ADM - 500 Club ATT 3 Minutes 1-8-2018
	ADM - 500 Club ATT 4 Jan 2018 Setting Fees RES 18-07
	ADM - 500 Club ATT 5 Draft 2019 Fees RES 19-___

	16. CED - Sunnyside Ave Purchases
	CED - Sunnyside Ave Purchases SR.doc
	CED - Sunnyside Ave Purchases ATT 1 MAP.doc
	CED - Sunnyside Ave Purchases ATT 2 RES 19-___.doc
	CED - Sunnyside Ave Purchases ATT 3 OFFER LETTER.doc
	CED - Sunnyside Ave Purchases ATT 4 ACCEPT LETTER.doc

	17. CC - Ord. 19-11
	CC - Ord. 19-11.doc

	18. Municode Presentation
	ADM - Municode Presentation

	19. Voting Delegate at Annual Conf.
	ADM - Voting Delegate - SR
	ADM - Voting Delegate - ATT 1

	Bottom

